
 
 
PO Box 159 
242 Fredonia Avenue 
Fredonia, Wi 53021 
Phone: 262-692-9125 
Fax: 262-692-2883 

 

  
 

 
 
 
Administrator: 
cjenkins@village.fredonia.wi.us 
Clerk:  
mjohnson@village.fredonia.wi.us 
Treasurer: 
mdepies@village.fredonia.wi.us 
 

 

 

  
AGENDA 

FREDONIA VILLAGE BOARD MEETING 
April 20, 2023 at 7:45PM 

Fredonia Government Center - Board Room 
242 Fredonia Avenue, Fredonia, Wisconsin 

 
 

THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS WILL BE BEFORE THE VILLAGE BOARD 
 FOR INITIATION, DISCUSSION, CONSIDERATION, DELIBERATION 

 AND POSSIBLE FORMAL ACTION 
 
 

1. Call to order 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance / Roll Call 
 

3. Consent agenda: 
a. Approve minutes of April 6, 2023 Village Board meeting. 
b. Approve General Fund, Water and Sewer Invoices. 
      

4. Public Comments 
Please note public comments are limited to five minutes per person 
 

5. Report on operations of Village by: 
a) Village President 
b) Village Administrator 
c) Village Marshal  
d) Fire Chief 
e) Public Works/Wastewater Treatment Plant 
f) Clerk 
g) Treasurer 
h) Ozaukee County District 2 Supervisor 

 
6. Items for Discussion and/or Action: 

a) Motion to Approve Peggy Deheck’s Water Bill Concession Request. 
b) Motion to Approve Resolution 2023-F to authorize Daniel Gehrke and 

Christophe Jenkins to cosign Village-issued checks and documents as the 
Village President and Village Administrator, respectively. 

c) Motion to Adopt Wis. Admin. Code SPS 327 
 

VILLAGE OF FREDONIA 
Find Your Moments Here 

mailto:cjenkins@village.fredonia.wi.us
mailto:mjohnson@village.fredonia.wi.us
mailto:mdepies@village.fredonia.wi.us


Emailed to village trustees, committee members, papers, and Friends of Fredonia on 4/18/2023 
Posted at Port Washington State Bank, Fredonia Post Office, and Village Hall on 4/18/2023 

7. Correspondence 
 

8. Items for future consideration by Village Board. 
 

9. Adjournment         
 
UPCOMING MEETINGS: 
 Plan Commission – May 1, 2023 (if needed) 
 Architectural Control Board – May 17, 2023 (if needed) 
 Village Board – May 4, 2023 
  
 
UPON REASONABLE NOTICE, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled 
individuals through appropriate aids and services.  For additional information or to request this 
service, contact the Village Clerk at (262) 692-9125. 
 
 

VIEW/ATTEND MEETING VIA ZOOM 
 
The Village of Fredonia will be utilizing ZOOM as a part of the Village Board meetings. All 
meetings will adhere to Wisconsin Open Meetings Laws and follow guidance provided by the WI 
Department of Justice. The public is able to attend public meetings in person. ZOOM is 
intended to provide an additional option for the public to join the meeting via computer, iPad, 
tablet, or telephone. 
 
We ask that you have your microphone muted. The Village reserves the right to mute disruptive 
attendees. 
 
The Village President will recognize anyone wishing to speak at the appropriate time and ask 
you to make your comments. 
 
To have the link sent to you, please contact the Village Clerk at: 
mjohnson@village.fredonia.wi.us  
 
 
Michelle Johnson is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. 
 
Topic: Village Board Meeting 
Time: Apr 20, 2023 07:30 PM Central Time (US and Canada) 
 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89811184269 
 
Meeting ID: 898 1118 4269 
One tap mobile 
+13126266799,,89811184269# US (Chicago) 
+16469313860,,89811184269# US 
 
Dial by your location 
        +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
        +1 646 931 3860 US 
        +1 929 205 6099 US (New York) 
        +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 

mailto:mjohnson@village.fredonia.wi.us


Emailed to village trustees, committee members, papers, and Friends of Fredonia on 4/18/2023 
Posted at Port Washington State Bank, Fredonia Post Office, and Village Hall on 4/18/2023 

        +1 305 224 1968 US 
        +1 309 205 3325 US 
        +1 669 444 9171 US 
        +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
        +1 689 278 1000 US 
        +1 719 359 4580 US 
        +1 253 205 0468 US 
        +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
        +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
        +1 360 209 5623 US 
        +1 386 347 5053 US 
        +1 507 473 4847 US 
        +1 564 217 2000 US 
Meeting ID: 898 1118 4269 
Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kdsu0mSO3 
 



 

 
FREDONIA VILLAGE BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

April 6, 2023 at 7:00PM 
Fredonia Government Center - Board Room 
242 Fredonia Avenue, Fredonia, Wisconsin 

 
 

1. President Dohrwardt called the meeting to order at 7:00PM, followed by the 
Pledge of Allegiance.  
 

2. Board members in attendance: Trustee Haas, Trustee Abegglen, President 
Dohrwardt, Trustee McLarty, Trustee Gehrke.  
Staff in attendance: Administrator Jenkins and Clerk Johnson 
Residents in attendance: Tiffany Bartz 
 

3. Motion made by Trustee McLarty to approve minutes of March 16, 2023 
Village Board meeting, approve General Fund, Water and Sewer Invoices 
and to approve Temporary Class “B”/ “Class B” Retailer’s License for 
Divine Savior Catholic School from April 28th-April 29th.  
Seconded by Trustee Gehrke. 
Passed by unanimous vote. 
 

4. No public comments were made. 
 
 

5. Items for Discussion and/or Action: 
a. Motion to Approve Arbor Day Proclamation made by Trustee Haas. 

Seconded by Trustee Abegglen 
Passed by unanimous vote. 

Trustee Paape joined via telephone 
b. Motion to Approve Miscellaneous Billing Module made by Trustee 

Haas. 
Seconded by Trustee Mclarty. 
Administrator Jenkins explained that Treasurer Depies requested this 
addition to the Village’s bookkeeping software because the Village would 
be doing much more invoicing once the water testing lab was up and 
running.  
Roll Call Vote: 
Trustee Paape- Aye 
Trustee Haas- Aye 
Trustee Abegglen- Aye 
President Dohrwardt- Aye 
Trustee McLarty- Aye 
Trustee Gehrke- Aye 
Passed by unanimous vote. 
 



 

c. Administrator Jenkins presented the bids collected for a municipal security  
camera system, explaining that one vendor withdrew from the bidding 
process. He went on to say that it was not his recommendation to the 
Board to select either of the two remaining vendors as the price point was 
too high. Trustee Paape agreed it was too expensive, but great to have 
the numbers for future budget planning. He went on to say the Board 
could look into breaking the project down into smaller parts over several 
years to better manage the cost.  
Motion to approve the municipal security camera system as 
presented made by Trustee Gehrke. 
Seconded by Trustee Haas. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Trustee Paape- Nay 
Trustee Haas- Nay 
Trustee Abegglen- Nay 
President Dohrwardt- Nay 
Trustee McLarty- Nay 
Trustee Gehrke- Aye 
Failed by a 5-1 vote. 
 

d. Motion to Approve DigiCorp Proposal to Migrate to Exchange Online 
from On-Prem Exchange at Ozaukee County made by Trustee McLarty. 
Seconded by Trustee Gehrke. 
Administrator Jenkins recapped for the Board that the County was 
supporting the Village until the end of 2023, at which point all 
municipalities in the county will need to find their own support. He spoke 
with Department Heads about limiting the number of email addresses 
needed for staff in order to lower the cost to the Village. 
Trustee McLarty amended his Motion to Approve DigiCorp Proposal to 
Migrate to Exchange Online from On-Prem Exchange at Ozaukee 
County not to begin until 2024. 
Seconded by Trustee Gehrke 
Roll Call Vote: 
Trustee Paape- Aye 
Trustee Haas- Aye 
Trustee Abegglen- Aye 
President Dohrwardt- Aye 
Trustee McLarty- Aye 
Trustee Gehrke- Aye 
Passed by unanimous vote. 
 

6. No Correspondence 
 

7. Trustee Haas shared that the County Board approved an extra $100,000 but that 
it was a sticking point that the Village Board hasn’t dedicated any ARPA funds to 
any Fire and EMS.  Trustee Haas challenged the Board to think hard about how 



 

to help fund Fire and EMS with ARPA money. 
Trustee McLarty expressed his gratitude to the Board and said he enjoyed 
working with them during his tenure. 
Trustee Gehrke said that he would like the Board to consider a street light at the 
corner of Martin Drive and Highland Drive. There is a safety concern at night 
after games and events at the school with students walking to Casey’s. 
Administrator Jenkins responded to Trustee Haas that the Village had $55,000 
remaining in unallocated ARPA funds. 
 
 

8. Motion to adjourn made by Trustee McLarty. 
Seconded by Trustee Gehrke 
Passed by unanimous vote at 7:24PM. 
 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Michelle Johnson 
Village Clerk    
 
 



In Progress Checks - Full Report - ALL 12:55 PM

ACCTALL Checks by Payee

GENERAL CHECKING & MONEY MARKET

Dated From:

Thru Account:Thru:

______________________________________________________________________________________
Voucher Nbr Check Date Payee Amount

From Account:

4/18/2023 Page:

4/13/2023 1ST AYD CORPORATION
Parks

100-00-55200-350-000 REPAIR/MAINTENANCE PARKS
Parks

287.41
PSI589820

______________________________________________________________________________________
287.41Total

4/18/2023 AgSource Cooperative Services
LAB SERVICES

660-00-53610-000-852 OUTSIDE SERVICES EMPLOYED
LAB SERVICES

1,186.80
PS-INV262428

______________________________________________________________________________________
1,186.80Total

4/18/2023 AIRGAS USA, LLC
CYLINDER RENTAL

350-00-52280-809-000 AMBULANCE EXP-MEDICAL SUPPLIES
CYLINDER RENTAL

16.15
9984208345

350-00-52280-809-000 AMBULANCE EXP-MEDICAL SUPPLIES
LEASE RENEWAL

426.65
9984826204

350-00-52280-809-000 AMBULANCE EXP-MEDICAL SUPPLIES
OXYGEN

164.67
9995740121

350-00-52280-809-000 AMBULANCE EXP-MEDICAL SUPPLIES
OXYGEN

164.67
9995740121

______________________________________________________________________________________
772.14Total

4/18/2023 AURORA HEALTH CARE
DUNN -BLOOD DRAW

100-00-52100-310-000 OFFICE SUPPLIES POLICE
DUNN -BLOOD DRAW

25.00
459156

______________________________________________________________________________________
25.00Total

4/13/2023 Batteries Plus
Back Up Battery

660-00-53610-000-827 OTHER OPERATING
Back Up Battery

705.76
P61462495

______________________________________________________________________________________
705.76Total

4/18/2023 BEAR GRAPHICS, INC
CHECKS

100-00-51600-390-000 SUPPLIES/EXPENSES VILLAGE HALL
CHECKS

90.02
0915594



In Progress Checks - Full Report - ALL 22:55 PM

ACCTALL Checks by Payee

GENERAL CHECKING & MONEY MARKET

Dated From:

Thru Account:Thru:

______________________________________________________________________________________
Voucher Nbr Check Date Payee Amount

From Account:

4/18/2023 Page:

600-00-53700-000-681 OFFICE SUPPLIES
CHECKS

90.02
0915594

660-00-53610-000-851 OFFICE EXPENSE
CHECKS

90.02
0915594

______________________________________________________________________________________
270.06Total

4/13/2023 CASEY'S BUSINESS MASTERCARD
Deisel Fuel

100-00-53240-350-000 REPAIR/MAINTENANCE HWY EQUIPME
Deisel Fuel

265.01

______________________________________________________________________________________
265.01Total

4/13/2023 CORE & MAIN
Water

600-00-53700-000-650 REPAIRS WATER
Water

975.00
S606106

600-00-53700-000-650 REPAIRS WATER
Water

2,071.38
S543785

______________________________________________________________________________________
3,046.38Total

4/13/2023 DREWS TRUE VALUE #0103-2
Shop

100-00-53270-350-000 REPAIR/MAINTENANCE (SHOP)
Shop

35.06
274485

100-00-53270-350-000 REPAIR/MAINTENANCE (SHOP)
Shop

22.53
274520

660-00-53610-000-834 MAINTENANCE BUILDINGS/GROUNDS
WWTP

128.01
274520

100-00-53300-350-000 REPAIR/MAINTENANCE STREETS
Streets

44.94
274836

600-00-53700-000-640 SUPPLIES & EXPENSES
Sewer

37.70
274836

660-00-53610-000-834 MAINTENANCE BUILDINGS/GROUNDS
Water

30.30
274836

600-00-53700-000-650 REPAIRS WATER
Water

53.27
274973

100-00-53270-350-000 REPAIR/MAINTENANCE (SHOP) 57.52
275235

______________________________________________________________________________________
409.33Total



In Progress Checks - Full Report - ALL 32:55 PM

ACCTALL Checks by Payee

GENERAL CHECKING & MONEY MARKET

Dated From:

Thru Account:Thru:

______________________________________________________________________________________
Voucher Nbr Check Date Payee Amount

From Account:

4/18/2023 Page:

4/18/2023 ELAN FINANCIAL SERVICES
FUEL

350-00-52230-302-000 OPERATING EXPENSE-FUEL
FUEL

27.92
5278

350-00-52230-303-000 OPERATING EXP.-OFFICE SUPPLIES
WEBROOT YEARLY PLAN

52.74
6199

350-00-52250-501-000 TRAINING/EDUCATION
PLIER FULL CIRCLE

100.00
0172

350-00-52250-501-000 TRAINING/EDUCATION
LODGING-TRAINING

174.00
2382

350-00-52260-601-000 FOOD/DRINK
MEIJER

50.79
8350

350-00-52250-501-000 TRAINING/EDUCATION
LODGING-TRAININGS

308.00
5114

350-00-52280-802-000 AMBULANCE EXP-OFFICE SUPPLIES
AMAZON

91.32
8474

350-00-52230-302-000 OPERATING EXPENSE-FUEL
FUEL

24.72
1012

350-00-52230-303-000 OPERATING EXP.-OFFICE SUPPLIES
USPS

25.20
2822

660-00-21100-000-232 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
AMAZON WEB SERVICE

0.90
7727

600-00-53700-000-689 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE
WATER EXAM

80.00
9226

100-00-51440-390-000 ELECTIONS OTHER SUPPLIES/EXPEN
DYMO LABELS

67.98
3421

600-00-53700-000-681 OFFICE SUPPLIES
PRINTER INK

62.44
3421

660-00-53610-000-851 OFFICE EXPENSE
PRINTER INK

62.45
3421

100-00-51600-390-000 SUPPLIES/EXPENSES VILLAGE HALL
HANGING FILES

15.89
3421

100-00-51600-390-000 SUPPLIES/EXPENSES VILLAGE HALL
FILE FOLDERS

14.39
3421

100-00-51600-390-000 SUPPLIES/EXPENSES VILLAGE HALL
EXPANDING FILES

30.29
30.29

660-00-53610-000-856 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE
WASTEWAER EXAM

80.00
3379



In Progress Checks - Full Report - ALL 42:55 PM

ACCTALL Checks by Payee

GENERAL CHECKING & MONEY MARKET

Dated From:

Thru Account:Thru:

______________________________________________________________________________________
Voucher Nbr Check Date Payee Amount

From Account:

4/18/2023 Page:

660-00-53610-000-856 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE
WASTEWATER EXAM

80.00
4350

660-00-21100-000-232 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
AMAZON WEB SERVICES

0.90
7849

100-00-51600-390-000 SUPPLIES/EXPENSES VILLAGE HALL
STAMPED ENVELOPES

384.45
3685

600-00-53700-000-689 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE
STAMPS

316.10
3685

660-00-53610-000-856 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE
STAMPS

316.10
3685

______________________________________________________________________________________
2,366.58Total

4/18/2023 EMERGENCY MEDICAL PRODUCTS, INC.
MEDICAL SUPPLIES

350-00-52280-809-000 AMBULANCE EXP-MEDICAL SUPPLIES
MEDICAL SUPPLIES

607.72
2526661

______________________________________________________________________________________
607.72Total

4/13/2023 FRONTIER
Phone Service

100-00-53270-221-000 TELEPHONE BUILDINGS/GROUNDS
Phone Service

73.33
04042023

______________________________________________________________________________________
73.33Total

4/18/2023 GUZIKOWSKI, CINDY
PROVISIONS

350-00-52260-601-000 FOOD/DRINK
PROVISIONS

67.00

______________________________________________________________________________________
67.00Total

4/13/2023 HACH COMPANY
Reactor/ Chlorimeter Chlorine

600-00-53700-000-650 REPAIRS WATER
Reactor/ Chlorimeter Chlorine

4,076.15
13525819

630-00-54100-000-630 LAB CHEMICALS
Lab Chemicals

259.48
13525819

630-00-54110-000-827 LAB SUPPLIES & EXPENSES
Adapter

120.50
13525819



In Progress Checks - Full Report - ALL 52:55 PM

ACCTALL Checks by Payee

GENERAL CHECKING & MONEY MARKET

Dated From:

Thru Account:Thru:

______________________________________________________________________________________
Voucher Nbr Check Date Payee Amount

From Account:

4/18/2023 Page:

630-00-54130-000-935 LAB EQUIPMENT
Lab Equipment

6,468.93
13522493

630-00-54100-000-630 LAB CHEMICALS
AMMONIA TNT

75.01
13536820

______________________________________________________________________________________
11,000.07Total

4/13/2023 Harter's Lakeside Disposal
Garbage

100-00-53620-290-000 CONTRACT GARBAGE COLLECTION
Garbage

6,943.04
347454

100-00-53621-290-000 CONTRACT - RECYCLING
Recycling

2,182.16
347454

______________________________________________________________________________________
9,125.20Total

4/13/2023 HAWKINS, INC.
Water Chemicals

600-00-53700-000-630 CHEMICALS FOR WATER
Water Chemicals

398.72
6442263

______________________________________________________________________________________
398.72Total

4/13/2023 HOUSEMAN AND FEIND, LLP
Legal Fees

100-00-51300-210-000 LEGAL COUNSELING
Legal Fees

80.00
80575

______________________________________________________________________________________
80.00Total

4/13/2023 JIM'S EXCAVATING, INC.
Fire Hydrant

600-00-53700-000-650 REPAIRS WATER
Fire Hydrant

2,250.00

______________________________________________________________________________________
2,250.00Total

4/13/2023 JOHNSON, MICHELLE
Election Lunch

100-00-51440-390-000 ELECTIONS OTHER SUPPLIES/EXPEN
Election Lunch

48.66

______________________________________________________________________________________
48.66Total

4/13/2023 LINDE GAS & EQUIPMENT INC.
Welding Gas Shop



In Progress Checks - Full Report - ALL 62:55 PM

ACCTALL Checks by Payee

GENERAL CHECKING & MONEY MARKET

Dated From:

Thru Account:Thru:

______________________________________________________________________________________
Voucher Nbr Check Date Payee Amount

From Account:

4/18/2023 Page:

100-00-53270-350-000 REPAIR/MAINTENANCE (SHOP)
Welding Gas Shop

57.65
35028633

______________________________________________________________________________________
57.65Total

4/13/2023 MIDWEST METER INC.
WATER METERS

600-00-53700-000-910 WATER CAPITAL EQUIPMENT
WATER METERS

3,640.00
0154449-IN

______________________________________________________________________________________
3,640.00Total

4/13/2023 POJAR, CARSTEN
Meal expenses

350-00-52260-601-000 FOOD/DRINK
Meal expenses

21.87

______________________________________________________________________________________
21.87Total

4/13/2023 PORT PUBLICATIONS
Newspaper Publications

100-00-55210-000-000 SUMMER RECREATION
Newspaper Publications

590.00
00172806

______________________________________________________________________________________
590.00Total

4/13/2023 PORT WASHINGTON, CITY OF
BACTERIOLOGICAL ANALYSIS

600-00-53700-000-682 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES
BACTERIOLOGICAL ANALYSIS

200.00
2013660

______________________________________________________________________________________
200.00Total

4/13/2023 RECOGNITION SPECIALISTS, INC
NAME PLATES

100-00-51100-390-000 VILLAGE BD OTHER SUPPLIES & EX
NAME PLATES

40.00
36235

______________________________________________________________________________________
40.00Total

4/13/2023 SABEL MECHANICAL, LLC.
WWTP Valve repair

600-00-53700-000-650 REPAIRS WATER
WWTP Valve repair

1,401.96
230186

______________________________________________________________________________________
1,401.96Total



In Progress Checks - Full Report - ALL 72:55 PM

ACCTALL Checks by Payee

GENERAL CHECKING & MONEY MARKET

Dated From:

Thru Account:Thru:

______________________________________________________________________________________
Voucher Nbr Check Date Payee Amount

From Account:

4/18/2023 Page:

4/13/2023 SECURIAN FINANCIAL GROUP
Premium Statement

100-00-51960-000-000 HEALTH INSURANCE
Premium Statement

47.60
76038

______________________________________________________________________________________
47.60Total

4/13/2023 SPECTRUM BUSINESS
INTERNET SERVICES

350-00-52280-801-000 AMBULANCE EXP-UTILITIES
INTERNET SERVICES

269.01
0021708040923

______________________________________________________________________________________
269.01Total

4/13/2023 STRAND ASSOCIATES, INC.
FACILITIES PLAN PREP

660-00-53610-000-852 OUTSIDE SERVICES EMPLOYED
FACILITIES PLAN PREP

330.40
0195584

400-00-53100-210-000 HWY. & STREET ENGINEERING
BUSINESS PARK EXPANSION

13,416.63
0195586

100-00-51310-210-000 ENGINEERING SERVICES
SPLASH PAD

816.84
0195585

______________________________________________________________________________________
14,563.87Total

4/13/2023 THILL, JOHN
Waste Water Treatment Plant

660-00-53610-000-834 MAINTENANCE BUILDINGS/GROUNDS
Waste Water Treatment Plant

863.25

______________________________________________________________________________________
863.25Total

4/13/2023 VERIZON
PD Phone

100-00-52100-350-000 REPAIR/MAINTENANCE POLICE
PD Phone

237.09
9931395582

350-00-52280-801-000 AMBULANCE EXP-UTILITIES
Ambo Phone

79.03
9931395582

600-00-53700-000-640 SUPPLIES & EXPENSES
Water Phone

79.03
9931395582

660-00-53610-000-827 OTHER OPERATING
Sewer Phone

49.43
993195582

______________________________________________________________________________________
444.58Total



In Progress Checks - Full Report - ALL 82:55 PM

ACCTALL Checks by Payee

GENERAL CHECKING & MONEY MARKET

Dated From:

Thru Account:Thru:

______________________________________________________________________________________
Voucher Nbr Check Date Payee Amount

From Account:

4/18/2023 Page:

4/13/2023 WISCONSIN RURAL WATER ASSOCIATION
CONSOLIDATED SAFETY REFRESHER TRAINING

600-00-53700-000-689 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE
CONSOLIDATED SAFETY REFRESHER TRAINING

232.32
4547

______________________________________________________________________________________
232.32Total

4/13/2023 WORKHORSE SOFTWARE SERVICES, INC.
BILLING MODULE

630-00-54110-000-827 LAB SUPPLIES & EXPENSES
BILLING MODULE

3,600.00
5399

______________________________________________________________________________________
3,600.00Total

58,957.28Grand Total



In Progress Checks - Full Report - ALL 92:55 PM

ACCTALL Checks by Payee

GENERAL CHECKING & MONEY MARKET

Dated From:

Thru Account:Thru:

______________________________________________________________________________________
Amount

From Account:

4/18/2023 Page:

12,456.86Total Expenditure from Fund # 100 - GENERAL FUND

2,671.46Total Expenditure from Fund # 350 - FIRE DEPARTMENT

13,416.63Total Expenditure from Fund # 400 - TID NO. 3

15,964.09Total Expenditure from Fund # 600 - WATER UTILITY

10,523.92Total Expenditure from Fund # 630 - LABORATORY

3,924.32Total Expenditure from Fund # 660 - SEWER UTILITY

58,957.28Total Expenditure from all Funds



From the Desk of: 

Christophe E. Jenkins 

Village Administrator 

Village Administrator’s Report – 4/20/2023 

Village Board of Trustees, 

 First off, congratulations to our incoming President Gehrke and Trustees Bartz, Dohrwardt, and 

Meyle Sr.! And thank you to Trustees McLarty and Long for their service to our community. Our election 

went smoothly as we had a consistent number of voters throughout the day. Clerk Johnson and myself 

conducted a pre-election training to set our expectations with our poll workers, and they handled the 

election successfully. Thank you to everyone for their efforts. 

 Treasurer Depies and I spent much time reviewing and revamping our internal bookkeeping and 

reporting processes as to better understand and timely account for our financials. We had a brief 

training with our bookkeeping software company, Workhorse, to learn more as well. We also began an 

intensive review of our 2023 budget finding corrections and adjustments to be made, that will be 

brought forth as a resolution at a future meeting. 

 Chief Weyker and I successfully secured an additional $100k of grant dollars from Ozaukee 

County for the administration of the Joint ALS Paramedic-level Service program. Special thanks go out to 

Trustee/Supervisor Haas, Sheriff Knowles, and Fire Chief Rice for their support as well. We are now 

actively recruiting new paramedics and looking for a new response vehicle. All of which, will be 

reimbursed through this grant program. At the Marshal’s Office, Sgt Leet has been increasing office 

hours and presence in the community as he officially retired from the Port Washington Police 

Department. Sgt Leet and the Fredonia Adult Day Center fundraised for new defibrillator units for our 

squads – we also received a donation from Port State Bank! 

 We are ramping up our first Kids Mud Run event and starting to spread the word. Sponsors are 

beginning to contribute funds as well, which are so appreciative of. You are able to get information and 

sign up by visiting our website: Fredonia.wi.gov. DPW crews have continued to work on spring cleaning 

and opening up parks, maintaining sewer and water utilities, and worked on getting the lab up and 

running. 

 Finally, we continued to meet with Strand Engineering on TID items – this includes preliminary 

layout for utilities, road, and grading, and creating a CSM for official property division. I also held 

onboarding meetings with our incoming trustees and with our new Village President. 

 Overall, it’s been a productive month, and we look forward to ramping up for Spring! 

Thank you, 

Christophe E. Jenkins - Village Administrator 

 



 
FREDONIA VILLAGE MARSHAL 
REPORT TO VILLAGE BOARD 

April 1, 2023 
 

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS:    Speed signs are in.  Due to the upcoming winter and the 
potential negative effects on the signs, I’m recommending we do not erect them until 
spring.  The Fredonia Lions Club has agreed to purchase 1 AED.  It appears the Fredonia 
American Legion is willing to donate what’s needed after the April 1 fundraiser to 
purchase the 2nd unit. 
 
UPCOMING EVENTS:  Eric Leet will begin normal business hours on April 10, 2023.  
He will be in Monday and Tuesday each week from 0800-1300.       

AS OF:   April 1, 2023 
 
HOURS:                              882.75                         2022 TOTAL:        2929.50 
AVERAGE PER WEEK:    73.5                      2022 AVERAGE:  61 
 
COMPLAINTS 2023:          213                           COMPLAINTS 2022:  730 
ARRESTS 2023:                  36                               ARRESTS 2022:   120 
 
EQUIPMENT ISSUES:  None   
 
MISCELLANEOUS:    
 
Final 2015 revenue:          $1,777.71 
 
Final 2016 revenue:          $5559.55 
 
Final 2017 revenue:          $3762.85 
 
Final 2018 revenue:          $1190.04 
 
Final 2019 revenue:          $4900.00 
 
Final 2020 revenue:       $1094.00 
 
Final 2021 revenue:       $6500.00 
 
2022 revenue:        $2960.00 
 
The 8 average is:              $3467.00 



Fredonia Fire Department  
201 S Milwaukee Street 
PO Box 159  
Fredonia, Wi 53021 
 

Chief Brian Weyker 
Phone: 262-692-9973  
bweyker@village.fredonia.wi.us 

March 2023 
MONTH IN REVIEW 

 
Training  

Fire Training –  
- Forcible entry and Ventilation training at training containers by wastewater plant. 
- During EMS training – work detail at training containers.  

 
 

Monthly Business Meeting –  
- Monthly vehicle and small equipment maintenance.  
- Update membership on:  

o Accepted application – Joseph Courtright – 18 year old resident – former 
member of our junior program – early graduate State Certified Firefighter I 
program 

o Paramedic Program Update 
o Incident review 

 
EMS training –  

- EMS state license renewal procedure, due by May 1st for all EMS personnel – 
assisted by Aurora trainers.  
 
 
 

Engineer/Fire Training –  
- Grass fire operations, training on unit 657 for grass fire – pumping and driving.  

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

VILLAGE DF FREDONIA 
Fin Your Mom nts I r 



Fredonia Fire Department  
201 S Milwaukee Street 
PO Box 159  
Fredonia, Wi 53021 
 

Chief Brian Weyker 
Phone: 262-692-9973  
bweyker@village.fredonia.wi.us 

FEBRUARY 2023 - Call Volumes 
Fire incidents – 5 

Rescue Incidents – 17 
Ambulance Incidents – 31 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

0

10

20

30

40

January February March April

32
37

26

35
33 31

IN
CI

DE
N

T 
 V

O
LU

M
E

AMBULANCE Volume (2022) AMBULANCE Volume (2023)

0

10

20

30

January February March April

23
19

15

25

18 17

IN
CI

DE
N

T 
 V

O
LU

M
E

RESCUE Volume (2022) RESCUE Volume (2023)

0

5

10

15

January February March April

6 6
3

7 6 5

IN
CI

DE
N

T 
 V

O
LU

M
E

FIRE Volume (2022) FIRE Volume (2023)

VILLAGE OF FREDONIA 
Fin Your om nts r 

• • 

• • 

• • 



March 2023 
Report from Director of Public Works 

Villai:e Operations 

Locates for Diggers Hotline DNR monthly water Snow and ice Well sampling 
along with info given to report events and distribution 

contractors for Dollar DNR monthly sewer 

general report 

Power Outage on the Cold Patching Sewer lab 
Met with contractors for 10111

• Plant was on testing 
culvert on S. Milwaukee st. back up for 6 hours 

Bublitz fixing violations at Water Rounds John Thill Clean buildings 
the plant for the lab updating FD, VH 

electrical in Lab 

Water turned off at Dollar Cross Connection Tree trimming at Street signs 
General inspections Village Hall being replaced 

Projects and Other Activities: 

Sewer Lab start up. Waiting for supplies to arrive. Bucket truck was inspected along with 
the boom. Has some concerns about truck and boom, but it passed DOT and Boom 
inspection. Have been training the guys on cross connection inspections along with a DNR 
rule that all Lead services need to be reported. Have been changing some old meters out. 
Had one that was busted due to no heat in the building. 

Ongoing Projects 

• Well 2 fix 
• Well 1 rehab quotes 
• Ordering water meters 
• Updating GIS 
• Dollar General water shut off to building 
• Fireman's park bridge fix quote 
• Updating emergency plans 
• Updating CMOM program 



WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 

Plant operations are good. We are well in compliance with permit conditions. We had many violations with 
hydro corp. Working on fixing all. Bublitz is working on getting the lab into compliance per the DNR. 
Looking at adding some additional lighting outside the plant on pre-existing poles quote by John Thill. John 
has been fixing some Electrical in the lab. Outlets were taped off, breakers were turned off. SCADA system 
went down and had to call in Energenecs to reboot a 2nd time. They suggested upgrading the SCADA before 
it quits working. 

Water Department 

Muncipal Well came to look at well 1 for upgrading and inspection of the reservoir and waiting on quote. 
Well 2 devoloped another leak and was found to be on the pipe that feeds the system waiting on parts. 
Looking at reducing or eliminating Sodium Silicate at both wells, Hawkins chemical came back with testing 
and results show overfeeding in the system. 

Public Works 

Parks were cleaned and inspected. Had a few plowing and salting events, along with a power outage. Cold 
patching some streets again. Trimmed trees and removed 2 of them at Village Office. Last snow event we 
had the loader break down along with the dump truck. Able to fix in house. 



wt p a er umoe d S vs ewa~e t t d 2023 rea e 
Jan Feb March ~oril May June U-uly ¼.ug Sept Oct Nov Dec 

WWTP 
nfluent 
MGal) 

Water Pumped 
._ Well 
(MGal) 

w ater p d W umpe vs ater M etere an I e d d B'll d 2023 
Jan !Feb Mar IAPr May June U-uly !Aug Sept Oct !Nov !Dec 

Water 
Pumped-
Well 
MGal) 

Water 
Metered 
MGal) 

1/o water 
!Unaccounted 

Water main breaks in the first quarter. Second Quarter 
2 0 

Water main breaks in the third quarter. Fourth Quarter 
0 0 



 
 Report from Village Clerk  
April 4, 2023 Spring Election was a busy and successful election, which included two weeks of 
in-person absentee voting. The Spring Election saw 863 of the Village’s 1,464 voters (about 
59%) participate, either in person or by mail. There was a steady stream of voters processed 
efficiently by our excellent staff.   
The day was not without incident: the phones went down mid-afternoon, which limited our 
access to the State voter registration system, and there was a minor car accident in the parking 
lot that did not block traffic.  We also have scheduled annual maintenance on our voting 
machine, which is timely, as the machine started acting a bit fussy towards the end of the night. 
Election results may be found on the Clerk’s page on the Village’s new website.  
 
We are gearing up for spring deadlines: liquor license renewal packets will be going out the 
beginning of May and processing Mudonia Mud Run applications has begun.  President Gehrke 
and I will be attending a BOR training to obtain certification before the May 23rd BOR meeting. 

The new building permitting process is taking shape as our inspectors close out the first permits 
issued under the new fee schedule and application.  It seems to be working for all parties 
involved! 

Website build-out continues, and forms and applications are being brought up-to-date and 
added to the site as fillable docs. 

Office clean-out and organization has begun around the other office duties: water bills, resident 
calls and walk-ins. 

  

 



From the Desk of: 
 
Melissa Depies 
Village Treasurer 
 

 
Request from Peggy Deheck to Waive a Portion of her Sewer Bill 

 
The Village received the following request from Peggy Deheck, 227 Crestview Drive: 
 

“We received our water/sewer bill for first quarter 2023.  We were expecting it to 
be increased as we had an outside hose burst while we were out of town in 
February and came home to a frozen front yard! 
However, the sewer portion increased as well and that, if I understand correctly, 
can only be estimated based on the amount of water used. 
  
I am using the below for example: 
4th quarter 2022 total bill was $153.23.  Can you confirm $120.65 of that was 
sewer and the remaining $32.58 was water?  If so, our average sewer for 2022 
was $120.40 
  
Based on that, we are asking for a concession on the $313.17 sewer on this first 
quarter of 2023 water/sewer bill.  We would agree to pay the average sewer of 
$120.40 plus the water for a revised total of $244.81 for first quarter 2023. 
  
We did speak to Eric Paulus regarding this and he can confirm the situation we 
had with the broken hose. 
  
Thank you, we look forward to your response. 
  
Peggy and Joe Deheck 
227 Crestview Drive, Fredonia” 

 
I ran a report for all 2022 water/sewer bills the sewer portion for those bills were as 
follows: 
 

04/06/2022 $125.06   
07/05/2022 $150.09   
10/10/2022 $155.30  TOTAL FOR ALL 4 QTRS = $549.52 
01/10/2023 $119.07  AVERAGE SEWER CHARGES = $137.38 

 
The April 2023 sewer portion of the water/sewer bill was $313.17, which is $175.79 
higher than the 4 quarters average. The PSC does allow the Village to adjust the sewer 
portion of the bill for situations such as this. 
 

I 11 



Recommendation: Reduce the sewer portion of the water/sewer bill in the amount of 
$175.79 for a revised total bill of: 

Sewer - $137.38 
Water - $124.41 
Total - $261.79 

I 
 
 
Administration’s Recommendation: Approve 
 
Fiscal Impact: $175.79 reduction in sewer income. 
 
 
Thank you, 
 
Melissa Depies 
Treasurer  

 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-F 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING DANIEL GEHRKE, VILLAGE PRESIDENT, AND CHRISTOPHE 
JENKINS, VILLAGE ADMINISTRATOR, AS A SIGNER ON VILLAGE-ISSUED CHECKS AND 

DOCUMENTS 

 WHEREAS, the Village Board of the Village of Fredonia, Ozaukee County, Wisconsin (the 
“Village”) hereby finds and determines that it is necessary, desirable, and in the best interest of 
the Village to authorize Daniel Gehrke and Christophe Jenkins to cosign Village-issued checks 
and documents as the Village President and Village Administrator, respectively. 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that Daniel Gehrke and Christophe Jenkins are 
authorized to cosign checks and documents issued by the Village. 

 RESOLVED by the Village Board of the Village of Fredonia, Ozaukee County, Wisconsin, 
on this 20th day of April, 2023 by a unanimous vote. 

 

 

 

 

 

__________________________________ 
Daniel Gehrke, Village President   

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 
             Michelle T. Johnson, Village Clerk 



From the Desk of  
Michelle Johnson, Village Clerk 

Dear Village Board, 

In February the Village received a notice from the Department of Safety and Professional Services asking 
the Village to renew our electrical inspection agency credential in order to maintain our commercial 
electrical delegation. I spoke with our contact at DSPS to confirm our remaining delegations were up-to-
date.  There were some clarifications to the program since the Village last filed, so I met with our 
inspectors, filed the appropriate documents, and our commercial building plan review and inspection 
delegations have been approved.   

The Village’s UDC/Residential delegation also needed to be updated.  In order to retain our 
UDC/Residential delegation, the State requires the adoption of SPS 327 in our current UDC ordinance. 

Therefore, it is my recommendation, along with DSPS, to amend the Village of Fredonia’s Code of 
Ordinances Chapter 200 Building Construction  

FROM: 

§ 200-2 Document adopted.
The Wisconsin Uniform Building Code has been adopted by the Village, and copies of this code are on
file in the Village Clerk-Treasurer's office.

TO: 

§ 200-2 Document adopted.
Wis. Admin. Code SPS 320-325 and SPS 327 has been adopted by the Village, and copies of these codes
are on file in the Village Clerk-Treasurer’s office.

Fiscal Impact: None 

Administrator’s Recommendation: Approve 

Respectfully submitted, 

Michelle T. Johnson 
Village Clerk 

https://ecode360.com/32546584#32546584
https://ecode360.com/32546584#32546584


10−1  SPS 327.03SAFETY AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Published under s. 35.93, Wis. Stats., by the Legislative Reference Bureau.

Published under s. 35.93, Stats. Updated on the first day of each month.  Entire code is always current.  The Register date on each page

is the date the chapter was last  published. Register May 2018 No. 749

Chapter SPS 327

CAMPING UNITS

Subchapter I — Administration and Enforcement
SPS 327.01 Purpose.
SPS 327.02 Scope.
SPS 327.03 Effective date.
SPS 327.04 Applications.
SPS 327.05 Exemptions.
SPS 327.06 Procedure for municipalities.
SPS 327.07 State jurisdiction.
SPS 327.08 Definitions.
SPS 327.09 Wisconsin camping unit building permit.
SPS 327.10 Procedure for obtaining camping unit building permit.
SPS 327.11 Inspections.
SPS 327.12 Approval procedures.
SPS 327.13 Suspension or revocation of Wisconsin camping unit building per-

mit.
SPS 327.14 Effect of suspension and revocation.
SPS 327.15 Approval of products.
SPS 327.16 Petition for variance.
SPS 327.17 Municipal variance from the code.
SPS 327.18 Appeals of orders, determinations, and for extension of time.
SPS 327.19 Adoption of standards.

Subchapter II — Construction Standards
SPS 327.20 Loads and materials.
SPS 327.21 Exits.
SPS 327.22 Stairways and elevated areas.
SPS 327.23 Ladders.
SPS 327.24 Ceiling height.
SPS 327.25 Fireblocking.
SPS 327.26 Smoke detectors.
SPS 327.27 Carbon monoxide alarms.
SPS 327.28 Protection against decay and termites.
SPS 327.29 Floor design.
SPS 327.30 Wood floors in contact with the ground.

SPS 327.31 Wood frame floors.
SPS 327.32 Decks.
SPS 327.33 Exterior covering.
SPS 327.34 Wood frame walls.
SPS 327.35 Roof design and framing.
SPS 327.36 Weather protection for roofs.

Subchapter III — Heating, Ventilating, and Air Conditioning
SPS 327.37 Scope.
SPS 327.38 Design.
SPS 327.39  Selection of equipment.
SPS 327.40 Types and location of equipment.
SPS 327.41 Combustion air.
SPS 327.42 Mechanical draft systems.
SPS 327.43 Equipment maintenance information.
SPS 327.44 Ductwork.
SPS 327.45 Dampers, registers, and grilles.
SPS 327.46 Piping.
SPS 327.47 Venting system location.
SPS 327.48 Multiple appliance venting.
SPS 327.49 Fuel storage.

Subchapter IV — Electrical Standards
SPS 327.50 Electrical standards.

Subchapter V — Plumbing
SPS 327.51 Plumbing.

Subchapter VI — Camping Unit Transfer Tanks
SPS 327.52 Purpose.
SPS 327.53 Installation and maintenance.
SPS 327.54 Compliance with code.
SPS 327.55 Servicing requirements.
SPS 327.56 Abandonment.
SPS 327.57 Penalties.

Note:  Ch. SPS 327 was created by emergency rule, EmR1703, effective Febru-
ary 6, 2017.

Subchapter I — Administration and Enforcement

SPS 327.01 Purpose.  The purpose of this code is to estab-
lish uniform statewide construction standards and inspection pro-
cedures for camping units in accordance with the requirements of
ss. 101.63 (1), 101.82 (1), and 145.02 (2) (b), Stats.

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr., eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Register March 2018
No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

SPS 327.02 Scope.  (1) GENERAL.  The provisions of this
code apply to all camping units for which construction com-
menced on or after February 6, 2017.

Note:  Also see s. SPS 327.04.

(2) MUNICIPAL ORDINANCES.  (a)  A municipality may not
adopt an ordinance on any subject falling within the scope of this
code including establishing restrictions on the occupancy of
camping units for any reason other than noncompliance with the
provisions of this code as set forth in s. SPS 327.11 (5).  This code
does not apply to occupancy requirements occurring after the first
occupancy following the final inspection required under s. SPS
327.11 (4).

(b)  This code shall not be construed to affect local require-
ments relating to land use, zoning, post−construction storm water
management, fire districts, side, front and rear setback require-
ments, property line requirements or other similar requirements.
This code shall not affect the right of municipalities to establish
safety regulations for the protection of the public from hazards at
the job site.

(c)  Any municipality may, by ordinance, require permits and
fees for any construction, additions, alterations, or repairs not
within the scope of this code.

(d)  Any municipality may, by ordinance, adopt the provisions
of this chapter to apply to any additions or alterations to existing
camping units.

(e)  Nothing in this chapter shall prevent a municipality from
any of the following:

1.  Implementing erosion and sediment control requirements
that are more stringent than the standards of this code when
directed by an order of the United States Environmental Protec-
tion Agency or by an administrative rule of the department of nat-
ural resources under s. NR 151.004.

2.  Regulating erosion and sediment control for sites that are
not under the scope of this chapter.

(f)  This code shall not be construed to affect the authority of
the department of natural resources to enforce chs. 281 and 283,
Stats., and administrative rules promulgated thereunder.

(3) LEGAL RESPONSIBILITY.  The department or the municipal-
ity having jurisdiction shall not assume legal responsibility for the
design or construction of camping units.

(4) RETROACTIVITY.  The provisions of this code are not
retroactive, except as specifically stated in a rule.

(5) LANDSCAPING.  The scope of this code does not extend to
driveways, sidewalks, landscaping, and other similar features not
having an impact on the camping unit structure.

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr., eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Register March 2018
No. 747, eff. 4−1−18; correction in (2) (f) made under s. 35.17, Stats., Register March
2018 No. 747.

SPS 327.03 Effective date.  The effective date of this
chapter is February 6, 2017.

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr., eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Register March 2018
No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/35.93
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/35.93
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.01
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.02
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.03
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.04
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.05
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.06
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.07
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.08
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.09
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.10
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.11
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.12
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.13
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.14
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.15
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.16
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.18
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.19
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.20
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.21
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.22
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.23
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.24
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.25
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.26
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.27
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.28
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.29
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.30
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.31
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.32
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.33
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.34
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.35
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.36
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.37
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.38
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.39
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.40
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.41
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.42
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.43
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.44
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.45
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.46
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.47
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.48
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.49
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.50
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.51
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.52
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.53
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.54
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.55
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.56
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.57
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/ch.%20SPS%20327
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/101.63(1)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/101.82(1)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/145.02(2)(b)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.04
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.11(5)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.11(4)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.11(4)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/NR%20151.004
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/ch.%20281
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/ch.%20283
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/35.17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc


10−2 SPS 327.04 WISCONSIN ADMINISTRATIVE CODE

Published under s. 35.93, Wis. Stats., by the Legislative Reference Bureau.

Published under s. 35.93, Stats. Updated on the first day of each month.  Entire code is always current.  The Register date on each page

is the date the chapter was last  published.Register May 2018 No. 749

SPS 327.04 Applications.  (1) NEW CAMPING UNITS.

This code applies to all camping units for which construction
commenced on or after February 6, 2017. All camping units cov-
ered under this subsection shall meet the requirements of this
chapter.  If a plumbing, electrical, heating, or air conditioning sys-
tem is installed in a camping unit, the system shall meet the
requirements of this chapter.

(2) ADDITIONS AND ALTERATIONS.  Additions and alterations to
camping units covered by this code shall comply with all provi-
sions of this code at the time of permit application or the beginning
of the project, if no permit is required.

(3) CHANGE OF USE.  Property previously used for another pur-
pose shall comply with this code upon conversion to a camping
unit.

Note:  Examples of property that may be converted to a camping unit include a
cabin, covered wagon, or gazebo.

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr., eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Register March 2018
No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

SPS 327.05 Exemptions.  (1) EXISTING CAMPING UNITS.

The provisions of this code shall not apply to camping units, the
construction of which was commenced prior to February 6, 2017,
or to additions or alterations to such camping units.

Note:  As provided under s. SPS 327.02 (2) (d), the provisions of this chapter may
be adopted by a municipality to apply to any additions or alterations to existing camp-
ing units.

(2) REPAIRS.  The provisions of this code do not apply to
repairs or maintenance to camping units, or to the repair of electri-
cal, plumbing, heating, ventilating, air conditioning and other sys-
tems installed therein.

(3) ACCESSORY BUILDINGS.  The provisions of this code do not
apply to detached garages or to any accessory buildings detached
from the camping unit.

(4) DETACHED DECKS.  The provisions of this code do not apply
to detached decks provided the deck does not serve an exit from
the camping unit.

(5) MANUFACTURED AND MODULAR HOMES.  The provisions of
this code do not apply to manufactured homes and modular
homes.

(6) MOTOR AND MOBILE HOMES AND RECREATIONAL VEHICLES.

The provisions of this code do not apply to motor homes, recre-
ational vehicles, park model recreational vehicles, and recre-
ational mobile homes.

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr., eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Register March 2018
No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

SPS 327.06 Procedure for municipalities.
(1) MUNICIPAL JURISDICTION.  (a)  General.  1.  Except as provided
in par. (b), cities, villages, towns, and counties approved by the
department under s. SPS 320.06 to exercise jurisdiction over the
construction and inspection of new dwellings shall exercise juris-
diction over the construction and inspection of new camping
units.

2.  Municipalities exercising jurisdiction under subd. 1. shall,
by ordinance, adopt this code in its entirety.

3.  Except as provided under s. SPS 327.02 (2) (d), no addi-
tional requirements within the scope of this code may be adopted
by a municipality unless approved by the department in accord-
ance with s. SPS 327.17.

(b)  Intent to not exercise jurisdiction.  Municipalities intending
not to exercise jurisdiction over the construction and inspection of
new camping units shall notify the department, in writing, within
90 days of the effective date of this code.

(c)  Recision of ordinances.  Municipalities that rescind an ordi-
nance under par. (a) shall file a certified copy of the recision with
the department within 30 days of adoption.

Note:  Notification of intent to not exercise jurisdiction and certified copies of reci-
sions of ordinances should be sent to Department of Safety and Professional Services,
Industry Services Division, PO Box 2658, Madison, WI 53701−2658.

(2) DEPARTMENTAL JURISDICTION.  In municipalities not exer-
cising jurisdiction under sub. (1), the department will oversee
enforcement and inspection services for new camping units.

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr., eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Register March 2018
No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

SPS 327.07 State jurisdiction.  In accordance with s.
101.64 (1) (h), Stats., municipalities administering the code may
be monitored by the department for compliance with the adminis-
trative requirements under this code.

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr., eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Register March 2018
No. 747, eff. 4−1−18; correction made under s. 13.92 (4) (b) 7., Stats., Register
May 2018 No. 749.

SPS 327.08 Definitions.  In this chapter:

(1) “Accessory building” means a detached building, not used
as a camping unit but is incidental to that of the camping unit and
which is located on the same lot. Accessory building does not
mean farm building.

(2) “Addition” means new construction performed on a camp-
ing unit which increases the outside dimensions of the camping
unit.

(3) “Allowable stress” means the specified maximum permis-
sible stress of a material expressed in load per unit area.

(4) “Alteration” means an enhancement, upgrading, or sub-
stantial change or modification other than an addition or repair to
a camping unit or to electrical, plumbing, heating, ventilating, air
conditioning, and other systems within a camping unit.

(5) “Approved” means an approval by the department or its
authorized representative.  Approval is not to be construed as an
assumption of any legal responsibility for the design or construc-
tion of the camping unit.

(6) “Building component” means any subsystem, subassem-
bly, or other system designed for use in or as part of a structure,
which may include structural, electrical, mechanical, plumbing,
and fire protection systems and other systems affecting health and
safety.

(7) “Building system” means plans, specifications and docu-
mentation for a system of manufactured building or for a type or
a system of building components, which may include structural,
electrical, mechanical, plumbing, and variations which are sub-
mitted as part of the building system.

(8) “Campground” has the meaning given in s. ATCP 79.03
(3).

Note:  ATCP 79.03 (3) reads: “Campground” means a parcel or tract of land owned
by a person, state, or local government that is designed, maintained, intended, or used
for the purpose of providing campsites offered with or without charge, for temporary
overnight sleeping accommodations.

(9) “Camping unit” means a framed structure or a tent, teepee,
yurt, or other structure with fabric roof or walls that is 400 square
feet or less in area, which is placed by a campground owner or
operator in a campground for which a permit is issued under s.
97.67, Stats., and used for seasonal overnight camping.

(10) “Camping unit transfer tank” or “transfer tank” means a
type of portable container used to collect and hold wastewater dis-
charges generated by an individual camping unit.

(11) “Ceiling height” means the clear vertical distance from
the finished floor to the finished ceiling.

(12) “Certified UDC inspector” means a person certified by
the department to engage in the administration and enforcement
of this code.

(13) A “chimney” is one or more vertical, or nearly so,
passageways or flues for the purpose of conveying flue gases to
the atmosphere.

(14) “Code” means this chapter.

(15) “Common area” means a kitchen, hallway, or any habit-
able room.

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/35.93
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/35.93
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.02(2)(d)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.06(1)(b)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20320.06
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.06(1)(a)1.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.02(2)(d)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.06(1)(a)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.06(1)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/101.64(1)(h)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/13.92(4)(b)7.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/749/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/749/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/ATCP%2079.03(3)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/ATCP%2079.03(3)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/97.67


10−3  SPS 327.08SAFETY AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Published under s. 35.93, Wis. Stats., by the Legislative Reference Bureau.

Published under s. 35.93, Stats. Updated on the first day of each month.  Entire code is always current.  The Register date on each page

is the date the chapter was last  published. Register May 2018 No. 749

(16) “Cooling load” is the rate at which heat must be removed
from the space to maintain a selected indoor air temperature dur-
ing periods of design outdoor weather conditions.

(17) “Deck” means an unenclosed exterior structure, attached
or adjacent to the exterior wall of a camping unit, which has a
floor, but no roof.

(18) “Department” means the department of safety and pro-
fessional services.

(19) “Dilution air” means air that is provided for the purpose
of mixing with flue gases in a draft hood or draft regulator.

(20) “Direct−vent appliance” means a gas−burning appliance
that is constructed and installed so that all air for combustion is
derived directly from the outside atmosphere and all flue gases are
discharged to the outside atmosphere.

(21) “Exit” means a direct, continuous, unobstructed means
of egress from inside the camping unit to the exterior of the camp-
ing unit.

(22) “Fireblocking” means a material or device used to retard
or prevent the spread of flame or hot gases through concealed spa-
ces into adjacent rooms or areas.

(23) “First floor” means the first floor level above any
groundfloor or basement or, in the absence of a groundfloor or
basement, means the lowest floor level in the camping unit.

(24) “Flight” means a continuous series of risers and treads,
with no intermediate landings.

(25) “Gas appliance” means any device that uses gas as a fuel
or raw material to produce light, heat, power, refrigeration, or air
conditioning.

(26) “Groundfloor” means that level of a camping unit, below
the first floor, located on a site with a sloping or multilevel grade
and which has a portion of its floor line at grade.

(27) “Guard” means a barrier erected to prevent a person from
falling to a lower level.

(28) “Habitable room” means any room used for sleeping, liv-
ing, or dining purposes, excluding such enclosed places as
kitchens, closets, pantries, bath or toilet rooms, hallways, laun-
dries, storage spaces, utility rooms, and similar spaces.

(29) “Handrail” means a horizontal or sloping rail intended
for grasping by a hand, for guidance or support or preventing a fall
down a stair.

(30) “Heating load” is the estimated heat loss of each room or
space to be heated, based on maintaining a selected indoor air tem-
perature during periods of design outdoor weather conditions.
The total heat load includes: the transmission losses of heat trans-
mitted through the wall, floor, ceiling, glass or other surfaces; and
either the infiltration losses or heat required to warm outdoor air
used for ventilation.

(31) “HVAC” means heating, ventilating and air condition-
ing.

(32) “HVAC system” means the equipment, distribution net-
work, and terminals that provide either collectively or individu-
ally the processes of heating, ventilating, or air conditioning to a
building.

(33) “Insignia” or “Wisconsin insignia” means a device or
seal approved by the department to certify compliance with this
code.

(34) “Kitchen” means an area used, or designed to be used, for
the preparation of food.

(35) “Land disturbing construction activity” means any man−
made alteration of the land surface resulting in a change in the
topography or existing vegetative or non−vegetative soil cover,
that may result in storm water runoff and lead to an increase in soil
erosion and movement of sediment.

(36) “Landing” means the level portion of a stairs located
between flights of stairs or located at the top and base of a stairs.

(37) “Lavatory” means a sink or basin in a camping unit bath-
room.

(38) “Listed and listing” means equipment or building com-
ponents which are tested by an independent testing agency and
accepted by the department.

(39) “Loft” means an upper room or floor with one side that
has at least 50% of the space from the floor to the ceiling open to
the floor below.

(40) “Manufactured home” has the meaning given in s.
101.91 (2), Stats.

(41) “Mechanical draft system” means a venting system for a
gas burning appliance that is designed to remove flue or vent gases
by mechanical means, such as a fan, which may consist of an
induced draft portion under non−positive static pressure or a
forced draft portion under positive static pressure.

(42) “Modular home” has the meaning given in s. 101.71 (6),
Stats.

(43) “Motor home” has the meaning given in s. 340.01 (33m),
Stats.

(44) “Municipality” means any city, village, town, or county
in this state.

(45) “Naturally vented appliance” means an appliance with a
venting system designed to remove flue or vent gases under non−
positive static vent pressure entirely by natural draft.

(46) “Owner” means any person having a legal or equitable
interest in the camping unit.

(47) “Park model recreational vehicle” means a factory built
vehicular structure that is designed only for recreational use and
not as a primary residence or for permanent occupancy, is built
and certified in accordance with the National Fire Protection
Association’s NFPA 1192−15, Standard for Recreational Vehi-
cles, or the American National Standards Institute’s ANSI
A119.5−15, Recreational Park Trailer Standard, and is not certi-
fied as a manufactured home.

(48) “Porch” means an unenclosed exterior structure at or
near grade attached or adjacent to the exterior wall of any camping
unit, and having a roof and floor.

(49) “Pre−existing insignia” or “Wisconsin pre−existing
insignia” means a device or seal approved by the department for
camping units, the construction of which was commenced prior
to February 6, 2017.

(50) “Recreational mobile home” has the meaning given in s.
66.0435 (1) (hm), Stats.

(51) “Recreational vehicle” has the meaning given in s.
340.01 (48r), Stats.

(52) “Registered UDC inspection agency” means a person,
business, or entity that is registered with the department for the
purpose of facilitating issuance of Wisconsin camping unit build-
ing permits and inspection of camping units in municipalities
where the department has jurisdiction pursuant to s. 101.651 (3)
(b), Stats.

(53) “Repair” means the act or process of restoring to original
soundness, including redecorating, refinishing, nonstructural
repairs or maintenance, or the replacement of existing fixtures,
systems, or equipment with the equivalent fixture, system or
equipment.

(54) “Shingle” means a unit of roof−covering material that
has been manufactured to specific dimensions and is applied in
overlapping fashion.  “Shingle” includes all of the following:

(a)  “Fiberglass asphalt shingle” means a type of shingle with
an internal mat composed of nonwoven, resin−bonded glass
fibers, that is impregnated and coated with asphalt.

(b)  “Laminated shingle” means a shingle with a second layer
of asphalt and mat laminated to the first layer, usually in a design
pattern to simulate the dimensional appearance of natural slate or
wood shakes.

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/35.93
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/35.93
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/101.91(2)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/101.71(6)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/340.01(33m)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/66.0435(1)(hm)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/340.01(48r)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/101.651(3)(b)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/101.651(3)(b)


10−4 SPS 327.08 WISCONSIN ADMINISTRATIVE CODE

Published under s. 35.93, Wis. Stats., by the Legislative Reference Bureau.

Published under s. 35.93, Stats. Updated on the first day of each month.  Entire code is always current.  The Register date on each page

is the date the chapter was last  published.Register May 2018 No. 749

(c)  “Organic asphalt shingle” means a shingle with an internal
mat composed of organic fibers, such as cellulose, that is saturated
and coated with asphalt.

(d)  “Strip shingle” means a rectangular shingle that relies
either on a sealant or on a combination of weight and stiffness to
resist wind uplift, rather than using interlocking tabs.

(55) “Stair,” ”stairs,” or ”stairway” means one or more risers
that form a continuous passage from one elevation to another.

(56) A “story” is that portion of a camping unit located
between the floor and the ceiling.

(57) “Vent” means a vertical flue or passageway to vent fuel−
burning appliances.

(58) “Ventilation” means the process of supplying or remov-
ing air by natural or mechanical means to or from any space.

(59) “Water closet” means a water−flushed plumbing fixture
designed to receive human excrement directly from the user of the
fixture.

(60) “Waters of the state” includes those portions of Lake
Michigan and Lake Superior within the boundaries of Wisconsin,
and all lakes, bays, rivers, streams, springs, ponds, wells,
impounding reservoirs, marshes, watercourses, drainage systems,
and other surface waters or groundwaters, natural or artificial,
public or private, within the state or its jurisdiction.

(61) “Window” means a glazed opening in an exterior wall,
including glazed portions of doors, within a conditioned space.

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr., eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Register March 2018
No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

SPS 327.09 Wisconsin camping unit building per-
mit.  (1) WHERE REQUIRED.  A Wisconsin camping unit building
permit shall be obtained from the municipality administering and
enforcing this code or from a registered UDC inspection agency
administering and enforcing this code in a municipality where the
department has jurisdiction pursuant to s. 101.651 (3) (b), Stats.,
before any construction of a camping unit may begin.

(2) INSPECTIONS.  A person who obtains a Wisconsin camping
unit building permit from a registered UDC inspection agency
shall retain the same agency to conduct the inspection of the
camping unit under s. SPS 327.11.

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr., eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Register March 2018
No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

SPS 327.10 Procedure for obtaining camping unit
building permit.  (1) APPLICATION.  Application for a Wiscon-
sin camping unit building permit shall be on forms obtained from
the department, the municipality, or the authorized UDC inspec-
tion agency administering and enforcing this code.  No applica-
tion shall be accepted that does not contain all the information
requested on the form.

Note:  Applications are available from the department by email at dsps@wiscon-
sin.gov or by telephone at (608) 266−2112, (877) 617−1565, or 411 (Telecommunica-
tions Relay).

(2) FILING OF PERMIT APPLICATIONS.  A Wisconsin camping
unit building permit shall be filed with the municipality or the
authorized UDC inspection agency administering and enforcing
this code.

(3) FEES.  (a)  Municipal fees.  The municipality shall, by ordi-
nance, determine fees to cover expenses of final inspection of the
camping unit and the issuance of a Wisconsin insignia.

Note:  Also see s. SPS 302.34, which sets the fee the department will charge for
a Wisconsin insignia.

(b)  Inspection agency fees.  UDC inspection agency fees shall
be determined by contract between the municipality and the
agency or between the department and the agency, where the
agency has been authorized to conduct inspections on behalf of
the department.

(4) ISSUANCE OF PERMITS.  (a)  The Wisconsin camping unit
building permit shall be issued if the requirements for filing and
fees are satisfied.

(b)  The permit shall expire 24 months after issuance if con-
struction of the camping unit has not been completed.

(5) DENIAL OF PERMITS.  (a)  General.  Approval shall be
denied if the municipality or authorized UDC inspection agency
administering and enforcing this code determines that the Wis-
consin camping unit building permit application does not substan-
tially conform to the provisions of this code and other legal
requirements.

(b)  Denial of application.  A copy of the denied application,
accompanied by a written statement specifying the reasons for
denial, shall be sent to the applicant and to the owner as specified
on the Wisconsin camping unit building permit application.

(c)  Appeals.  The applicant may appeal a denial of the applica-
tion in accordance with the procedure outlined in s. SPS 327.18.

(6) TIME−SPAN FOR APPROVAL OR DENIAL.  Action to approve or
deny a camping unit building permit application shall be com-
pleted within 10 business days of receipt of the application, fees,
and supplementary information required to process the applica-
tion.

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr., eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Register March 2018
No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

SPS 327.11 Inspections.  (1) INSPECTOR CERTIFICATION.

All inspections, for the purpose of administering and enforcing
this code, shall be performed by a certified UDC inspector who
holds the respective credential for the inspection performed.

Note:  Also see ch. SPS 305, which relates to licenses, certifications, and registra-
tions.

(2) GENERAL INSPECTION REQUIREMENTS.  (a)  General.  Camp-
ing units for which a permit has been issued under s. SPS 327.10
(4) shall be inspected in accordance with this section. Inspections
shall be conducted by the municipality or authorized UDC inspec-
tion agency administering and enforcing this code to determine if
the construction conforms to the provisions of this code.

(b)  Inspection notice.  The applicant or an authorized represen-
tative shall request an inspection required under sub. (3) or (4)
from the municipality or authorized UDC inspection agency
administering and enforcing this code.

(3) ROUGH INSPECTION.  (a)  A rough inspection of the follow-
ing shall be performed after the rough work is constructed but
before it is concealed to determine if the work complies with this
code:

1.  General construction, including framing.

2.  Rough electrical.

3.  Rough plumbing.

4.  Rough heating, ventilating and air conditioning.

(b)  All rough work may be completed before the notice for
rough inspection is given, provided the rough work has not been
covered.

(c)  The applicant may request one rough inspection or individ-
ual rough inspections.

(d)  A separate fee may be charged for each individual inspec-
tion.

(4) FINAL INSPECTION REQUIRED PRIOR TO OCCUPANCY.  (a)  A
camping unit may not be occupied until a final inspection has been
made of a camping unit’s construction, HVAC, electrical, plumb-
ing, and transfer tank that finds no critical violations of this code
that could reasonably be expected to affect the health or safety of
a person using the camping unit.

(b)  If the municipality or authorized UDC inspection agency
conducting the inspection under this subsection did not conduct
the inspection under sub. (3), the final inspection under this sub-
section may not take place until the municipality or authorized
UDC inspection agency is provided a copy of an inspection report
or other written verification of a pass result for all inspections
required under sub. (3).

(5) NOTICE OF COMPLIANCE OR NONCOMPLIANCE.  (a)  Upon a
finding of compliance for an inspection under sub. (4), the munici-

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/35.93
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/35.93
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/101.651(3)(b)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.11
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
mailto:dsps@wisconsin.gov
mailto:dsps@wisconsin.gov
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20302.34
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.18
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/ch.%20SPS%20305
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.10(4)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.10(4)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.11(3)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.11(4)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.11(3)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.11(3)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.11(4)


10−5  SPS 327.15SAFETY AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Published under s. 35.93, Wis. Stats., by the Legislative Reference Bureau.

Published under s. 35.93, Stats. Updated on the first day of each month.  Entire code is always current.  The Register date on each page

is the date the chapter was last  published. Register May 2018 No. 749

pality shall assign a Wisconsin insignia to the owner of the camp-
ing unit as provided in s. SPS 327.12 (1).

(b)  Upon a finding of noncompliance for an inspection under
sub. (3) or (4), the municipality or authorized UDC inspection
agency enforcing this code shall notify the applicant of record and
the owner, in writing, of the violations to be corrected.

(c)  The municipality or authorized UDC inspection agency
shall order all cited violations corrected within 30 days after writ-
ten notification, unless an extension of time is granted under s.
SPS 327.18.

(6) VOLUNTARY INSPECTION.  The department or its authorized
representative may, at the request of the owner, enter and inspect
camping units, subject to the provisions of this code, to ascertain
compliance with this code.

(7) RECORD KEEPING.  (a)  Municipal enforcement.  Municipal-
ities that have adopted an ordinance to enforce this code shall
maintain records in accordance with all of the following:

1.  A record shall be made of each visit to a site, each inspec-
tion performed, and the pass or fail results of each inspection.

2.  Application forms, correction orders, correspondence and
inspection records shall be maintained for 7 years after comple-
tion of the camping unit.

(b)  State enforcement.  Inspectors working under state contract
shall maintain records in accordance with the provisions of the
contract that was in effect at the time the inspections were com-
pleted.

Note:  Records generated by an inspection are public records and are subject to the
open−records law.

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr., eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Register March 2018
No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

SPS 327.12 Approval procedures.  (1) WISCONSIN

INSIGNIA.  (a)  Upon a finding of compliance under s. SPS 327.11
(5) (a), the municipality shall issue a Wisconsin insignia to the
owner of the camping unit.

(b)  At the request of the owner of a camping unit that is exempt
from the provisions of this code under s. SPS 327.05 (1), the
municipality shall issue a Wisconsin pre−existing insignia to the
owner of the camping unit. A pre−existing insignia shall contain
the following language: “Unit was constructed before code’s eff.
date.”

(c)  Wisconsin insignias shall be purchased by municipalities
from the department in accordance with the fee established in s.
SPS 302.34. The owner of the camping unit shall affix the Wiscon-
sin insignia to the camping unit as provided in sub. (4).

(2) UNIT IDENTIFICATION.  Each camping unit shall be assigned
a serial number. The serial number shall be located on the Wiscon-
sin insignia.

(3) LOST OR DAMAGED INSIGNIA.  (a)  Notification.  If a Wiscon-
sin insignia becomes lost or damaged or is no longer in use, the
owner of the camping unit shall immediately notify the municipal-
ity in writing.

(b)  Return of damaged insignias.  If a Wisconsin insignia
becomes damaged, the owner of the camping unit shall return the
insignia to the municipality with the appropriate fee to obtain a
new insignia.

(4) AFFIXING WISCONSIN INSIGNIAS.  Each Wisconsin insignia
shall be affixed to a specific camping unit in an overt location on
the outside or inside of the camping unit. If the Wisconsin insignia
is issued under sub. (1) (a), the camping unit may not be occupied
until the Wisconsin insignia has been affixed as provided in this
subsection.

(5) INSIGNIA RECORDS.  (a)  Municipality’s insignia records.
The municipality shall keep permanent records regarding the han-
dling of all Wisconsin insignias indicating the following:

1.  The number of Wisconsin insignias affixed to camping
units.

2.  Which Wisconsin insignia has been applied to which camp-
ing unit.

3.  The disposition of any damaged or rejected Wisconsin
insignias.

4.  The location and custody of all unused Wisconsin
insignias.

(b)  Retention of insignia records.  The records under par. (a)
shall be maintained by the municipality for at least 10 years. A
copy of the records shall be sent to the department upon request.

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr., eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Register March 2018
No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

SPS 327.13 Suspension or revocation of Wisconsin
camping unit building permit.  (1) (a)  The municipality or
the registered UDC inspection agency administering and enforc-
ing this code may suspend or revoke any Wisconsin camping unit
building permit where it appears that the permit or approval was
obtained through fraud or deceit, where the applicant has willfully
refused to correct a violation order, or where the inspector is
denied access to the premises.

(b)  No construction may take place on the camping unit after
suspension or revocation of the permit.

(2) Any person aggrieved by a determination made by the
department, a municipality, or a registered UDC inspection
agency may appeal the decision in accordance with s. SPS 327.18.

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr., eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Register March 2018
No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

SPS 327.14 Effect of suspension and revocation.
(1) BEARING OF INSIGNIA.  Upon suspension or revocation under
s. SPS 327.13, the camping unit shall not be entitled to bear the
Wisconsin insignia and the camping unit may not be occupied
unless the municipality has inspected, or caused to be inspected,
such camping unit and is satisfied that all requirements for
approval have been met.

(2) RETURN OF INSIGNIAS.  The owner shall return to the munic-
ipality a Wisconsin insignia assigned to a camping unit no later
than 30 days from the effective date of any suspension or revoca-
tion under s. SPS 327.13.

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr., eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Register March 2018
No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

SPS 327.15 Approval of products.  (1) VOLUNTARY

APPROVAL.  (a)  Materials, equipment and products regulated by
this code may receive a written approval from the department
indicating code compliance.

(b)  1.  Approval of materials, equipment and products shall be
based on sufficient data, tests and other evidence that prove the
material, equipment or product is in compliance with the stan-
dards specified in this code.

2.  Tests, compilation of data, and calculations for materials,
equipment and products shall be conducted by a qualified inde-
pendent third party.

(2) ALTERNATE APPROVAL.  (a)  Materials, equipment and prod-
ucts, including experimental materials, equipment, and products,
which meet the intent of this code and which are not approved
under sub. (1) shall be permitted if approved in writing by the
department.

(b)  1.  Approval of materials, equipment and products shall be
based on sufficient data, tests, and other evidence that prove the
material, equipment, or product meets the intent of the standards
specified in this code.

2.  Tests, compilation of data, and calculations for materials,
equipment, and products shall be conducted by a qualified inde-
pendent third party.

(3) REVIEW, APPROVAL AND REVOCATION PROCESSES.  (a)  1.
Upon receipt of a fee and a written request, the department may
issue an approval for a material, equipment, or product.

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/35.93
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/35.93
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.12(1)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.11(3)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.11(4)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.18
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.11(5)(a)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.11(5)(a)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.05(1)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20302.34
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.12(4)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.12(1)(a)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.12(5)(a)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.18
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.13
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.13
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.15(1)


10−6 SPS 327.15 WISCONSIN ADMINISTRATIVE CODE

Published under s. 35.93, Wis. Stats., by the Legislative Reference Bureau.

Published under s. 35.93, Stats. Updated on the first day of each month.  Entire code is always current.  The Register date on each page

is the date the chapter was last  published.Register May 2018 No. 749

2.  The department shall review and make a determination on
an application for approval after receipt of all forms, fees, plans,
and information required to complete the review.

3.  For voluntary and alternate approvals, a determination
shall be made within 40 business days of receipt of all required
materials.

(b)  1.  The department may include specific conditions in issu-
ing an approval, including an expiration date for the approval.

2.  Violations of the conditions under which an approval is
issued shall constitute a violation of this code.

(c)  If the department determines that the material, equipment,
or product does not comply with this code or the intent of this
code, the request for approval shall be denied in writing.

(d)  If an approved material, equipment, or product is modified,
the approval shall be considered null and void, unless the material,
equipment, or product is resubmitted to the department for review
and approval is granted.

(e)  1.  The department may revoke or deny an approval of a
material, equipment, or product for any false statements or mis-
representations of relevant facts or data, unacceptability of a third
party providing information, or as a result of material, equipment,
or product failure.

2.  The department may re−examine an approved material,
equipment, or product and issue a revised approval at any time.

(f)  The department may revoke an approval if the department
determines that the material, equipment, or product does not com-
ply with this code or the intent of this code due to a change in the
code or department interpretation of the code.

(g)  An approval issued by the department may not be con-
strued as an assumption of any responsibility for defects in design,
construction, or performance of the approved material, equip-
ment, or product nor for any damages that may result.

(h)  Fees for the review of a material, equipment or product
under this section and any onsite inspections shall be submitted in
accordance with ch. SPS 302.

(4) UNGRADED OR USED MATERIALS.  (a)  Ungraded or used
building materials may be used or reused as long as the material
possesses the essential properties necessary to achieve the level of
performance required by the code for the intended use.

(b)  The department or the municipality enforcing this code
may require tests in accordance with sub. (1) or (2).

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr., eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Register March 2018
No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

SPS 327.16 Petition for variance.  The department may
grant a variance to a rule only if the variance does not result in low-
ering the level of health, safety, and welfare established or
intended by the rule.  The department may consider other criteria
in determining whether a variance should be granted including the
effect of the variance on uniformity.

(1) APPLICATION FOR VARIANCE.  Application for a petition for
variance shall be made on a form furnished by the department.
The applicant shall submit the petition for variance application to
the municipality exercising jurisdiction in order to receive the
municipal recommendation.  Where no municipality exercises
jurisdiction, the application shall be submitted to the department.
The following items shall be submitted when requesting a vari-
ance:

(a)  A clear written statement of the specific provisions of this
code from which a variance is requested and the method of estab-
lishing equivalency to those provisions.

(b)  A fee in accordance with s. SPS 302.52.  The municipality
may require a fee for the processing of the application in addition
to the department’s fee.

Note:  A copy of the petition for variance form, SBD−9890, is contained in ch. SPS
325 Appendix A.

(2) MUNICIPAL RECOMMENDATION.  The municipality adminis-
tering and enforcing this code shall submit all applications for

variance to the department, together with a municipal recom-
mendation within 10 business days after receipt of the application.
The recommendation of the municipality shall include the follow-
ing items:

(a)  Inspections performed on the property.

(b)  The issuance of correction orders on the property.

(c)  An assessment of the overall impact of the variance on the
municipality.

Note:  A copy of the municipal recommendation form, SBD−9890, is contained
in ch. SPS 325 Appendix A.

(3) DEPARTMENTAL ACTION.  Where a municipality administers
and enforces the code, the department shall decide petitions for
variance and shall mail notification to the municipality and the
applicant within 5 business days after receipt of the application
and municipal recommendation.  Where the department enforces
the code, the department shall decide petitions for variance within
15 business days after receipt of the application and fees.

(4) APPEALS.  A person or municipality may appeal the deter-
mination of the department in the manner set out in s. 101.02 (6)
(e) to (i) and (8), Stats.

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr., eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Register March 2018
No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

SPS 327.17 Municipal variance from the code.  Any
municipality exercising or intending to exercise jurisdiction under
this code may apply to the department for a variance permitting
the municipality to adopt an ordinance not in conformance with
this code.  The department shall review and make a determination
on a municipal request to adopt an ordinance not in conformance
with this code within 60 business days of receipt of the request.

(1) APPLICATION FOR VARIANCE.  The department may grant an
application only under the following circumstances:

(a)  The municipality has demonstrated that the variance is nec-
essary to protect the health, safety, or welfare of individuals within
the municipality because of specific climate or soil conditions
generally existing within the municipality.

(b)  The municipality has demonstrated that the granting of the
variance, when viewed both individually and in conjunction with
other variances requested by the municipality, does not impair the
statewide uniformity of this code.

(2) DEPARTMENTAL INQUIRY.  Prior to making a determination,
the department shall solicit within the municipality and consider
the statements of any interested persons as to whether or not said
application should be granted.

(3) APPEALS.  Any municipality aggrieved by the denial of an
application may appeal the determination in accordance with the
procedure set out in s. 101.02 (6) (e) to (i) and (8), Stats.  The
department shall review and make a determination on an appeal
of denial of a municipal request to adopt an ordinance not in con-
formance with this code within 60 business days of receipt of the
appeal.

(4) UNIFORMITY.  This section shall be strictly construed in
accordance with the goal of promoting statewide uniformity.

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr., eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Register March 2018
No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

SPS 327.18 Appeals of orders, determinations, and
for extension of time.  (1) APPEALS OF ORDERS AND DETERMI-
NATIONS BY A MUNICIPALITY EXERCISING JURISDICTION.  Appeals of
order or determination of a municipality exercising jurisdiction
under this code, including denials of application for permits, shall
be made in accordance with the procedure set out in ch. 68, Stats.,
prior to making an appeal to the department, except as provided
in sub. (2).

(2) APPEALS OF FINAL DETERMINATIONS BY A MUNICIPALITY

EXERCISING JURISDICTION.  Appeals of final determinations by
municipalities shall be made to the department after the proce-
dures prescribed in ch. 68, Stats., have been exhausted.  All
appeals to the department shall be in writing stating the reason for

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/35.93
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/35.93
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/ch.%20SPS%20302
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.15(1)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.15(2)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20302.52
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/ch.%20SPS%20325%20Appendix%20A
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/ch.%20SPS%20325%20Appendix%20A
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/ch.%20SPS%20325%20Appendix%20A
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/101.02(6)(e)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/101.02(6)(e)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/101.02(6)(i)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/101.02(8)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/101.02(6)(e)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/101.02(6)(i)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/101.02(8)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/ch.%2068
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.18(2)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/ch.%2068


10−7  SPS 327.19SAFETY AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Published under s. 35.93, Wis. Stats., by the Legislative Reference Bureau.

Published under s. 35.93, Stats. Updated on the first day of each month.  Entire code is always current.  The Register date on each page

is the date the chapter was last  published. Register May 2018 No. 749

the appeal.  All appeals shall be filed with the department within
10 business days of the date the final determination is rendered
under ch. 68, Stats.  The department shall render a written decision
on all appeals within 60 business days of receipt of all calculations
and documents necessary to complete the review.

Note:  Chapter 68, Stats., provides that municipalities may adopt alternate admin-
istrative appeal procedures that provide the same due process rights as ch. 68, Stats.
Municipalities having adopted such alternate procedures may follow those alternate
procedures.

(3) APPEALS OF ORDERS AND DETERMINATIONS BY THE DEPART-
MENT.  Appeals of orders or determinations of the department
made pursuant to the provisions of this code, including denials of
application for permits, shall be in accordance with the procedure
set out in s. 101.02 (6) (e) to (i) and (8), Stats.  The department shall
review and make a determination on an appeal of an order or deter-
mination within 60 business days of receipt of all calculations and
documents necessary to complete the review.

(4) EXTENSIONS OF TIME.  (a)  The time for correction of cited
orders as set out in s. SPS 327.11 shall automatically be extended
in the event that an appeal of the orders is filed.  The extension of
time shall extend to the termination of the appeal procedure and
for additional time as the department or municipality adminis-
tering and enforcing this code may allow.

(b)  The department or municipality administering and enforc-
ing this code may grant additional reasonable time in which to
comply with a violation order.

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr., eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Register March 2018
No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

SPS 327.19 Adoption of standards.  (1) CONSENT.

Pursuant to s. 227.21 (2), Stats., the attorney general has con-
sented to the incorporation by reference of the standards listed in
Tables 327.19−1 to 327.19−7.

(2) ADOPTION OF STANDARDS.  The standards referenced in
Tables 327.19−1 to 327.19−7 are incorporated by reference into
this chapter.

Note:  Copies of the adopted standards are on file in the offices of the department
and the legislative reference bureau.  Copies of the standards may be purchased, or
are available for free, through the respective organizations or other information listed
in Tables 327.19−1 to 327.19−7.

(3) ALTERNATE STANDARDS.  (a)  Alternate standards that are
equivalent to or more stringent than the standards incorporated by
reference in this chapter may be used in lieu of incorporated stan-
dards when approved by the department or if written approval is
issued by the department in accordance with par. (b).

(b)  1.  a.  Upon receipt of a fee and a written request, the depart-
ment may issue an approval for the use of the alternate standard.

b.  The department shall review and make a determination on
an application for approval within 40 business days of receipt of
all forms, fees, and documents required to complete the review.

2.  Determination of approval shall be based on an analysis of
the alternate standard and the incorporated standard, prepared by
a qualified independent third party or the organization that pub-
lished the incorporated standard.

3.  The department may include specific conditions in issuing
an approval, including an expiration date for the approval.  Viola-
tions of the conditions under which an approval is issued shall
constitute a violation of this code.

4.  If the department determines that the alternate standard is
not equivalent to or more stringent than the standards incorporated
by reference, the request for approval shall be denied in writing.

5.  The department may revoke an approval for any false state-
ments or misrepresentations of facts on which the approval was
based.  The department may re−examine an approved alternate
standard and issue a revised approval at any time.

6.  Fees for review of standards under this paragraph shall be
submitted in accordance with ch. SPS 302.

Table 327.19−1

ASHRAE American Society of Heating, Refrigerating, and Air−
conditioning Engineers, Inc. 1791 Tullie Circle, N.E.
Atlanta, GA 30329 www.ashrae.org

Standard Reference Number Title

1. 2013 Fundamentals ASHRAE Handbook — Fundamentals

2. 2011 HVAC Applications ASHRAE Handbook — HVAC Applications

3. 2012 HVAC Systems & Equipment ASHRAE Handbook — HVAC Systems & Equipment

Table 327.19−2

AWC American Wood Council 222 Catoctin Circle SE Suite
201 Leesburg, VA 20175 www.americanwoodcoun-
cil.org

Standard Reference Number Title

1. ANSI/AWC NDS — 2015 National Design Specification For Wood Construction

2. ANSI/AWC PWF — 2007 Permanent Wood Foundation Design Specification

Table 327.19−3

ICC The International Code Council 500 New Jersey Avenue,
NW, 6th Floor Washington, D.C. 20001 www.iccsafe.org

Standard Reference Number Title

ICC 400−2012 Standard on the Design and Construction of Log Struc-
tures

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/35.93
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/35.93
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/ch.%2068
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/ch.%2068
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/ch.%2068
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/101.02(6)(e)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/101.02(6)(i)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/101.02(8)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.11
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/227.21(2)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.19(3)(b)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/ch.%20SPS%20302


10−8 SPS 327.19 WISCONSIN ADMINISTRATIVE CODE

Published under s. 35.93, Wis. Stats., by the Legislative Reference Bureau.

Published under s. 35.93, Stats. Updated on the first day of each month.  Entire code is always current.  The Register date on each page

is the date the chapter was last  published.Register May 2018 No. 749

Table 327.19−4

NAIMA North American Insulation Manufacturers Association
11 Canal Canter Plaza, Suite 103 Alexandria, VA 22314
www.naima.org

Standard Reference Number Title

1. 3rd Edition, 2002 Fibrous Glass Residential Duct Construction Standards

Table 327.19−5

NFPA National Fire Protection Association 1 Batterymarch
Park Quincy, MA 02269 www.nfpa.org

Standard Reference Number Title

1. NFPA 54/ANSI Z223.1 2015 National Fuel Gas Code

Table 327.19−6

SMACNA Sheet Metal and Air Conditioning Contractors  National
Association 4201 Lafayette Center Drive Chantilly, VA
20151−1219 www.smacna.org

Standard Reference Number Title

1. Seventh Edition, 1998 Residential Comfort System Installation Standards Man-
ual

2. Seventh Edition, 2003 Fibrous Glass Duct Construction Standards

3. Third Edition, 2005 HVAC Duct Construction Standards — Metal and Flexi-
ble

Table 327.19−7

TPI Truss Plate Institute, Inc. 218 North Lee Street, Suite 312
Alexandria, VA 22314 www.tpinst.org

Standard Reference Number Title

ANSI/TPI 1−2007 National Design Standard for Metal Plate Connected
Wood Truss Construction

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr., eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Register March 2018 No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

Subchapter II — Construction Standards

SPS 327.20 Loads and materials.  Every camping unit
shall be designed and constructed in accordance with the require-
ments of this section.

(1) DESIGN LOAD.  Every camping unit shall be designed and
constructed to support the actual dead load and live loads acting
upon it without exceeding the allowable stresses of the material.
The construction of camping units shall result in a system that pro-

vides a complete load path capable of transferring all loads from
point of origin through the load−resisting elements to the ground.

(a)  Dead loads.  Every camping unit shall be designed and con-
structed to support the actual weight of all components and mate-
rials.  Earth−sheltered camping units shall be designed and con-
structed to support the actual weight of all soil loads.

(b)  Live loads.  Floors and ceilings shall be designed and con-
structed to support the minimum live loads listed in Table
327.20−1.  The design load shall be applied uniformly over the
component area.

Table 327.20−1

Component Live Load (pounds per sq. ft.)

Floors 40

Exterior balconies and porches 40

Ceilings (with storage) 20

Ceilings (without storage) 5

(2) METHODS OF DESIGN.  All camping units shall be designed
by the method of structural analysis or the method of accepted
practice specified in each part of this code.

Note:  See ch. NR 116, rules of the department of natural resources, for special
requirements relating to buildings located in flood plain zones.  Information regard-
ing the elevation of the regional flood may be obtained from the local zoning official.

Ill 

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/35.93
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/35.93
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/ch.%20NR%20116


10−9  SPS 327.20SAFETY AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Published under s. 35.93, Wis. Stats., by the Legislative Reference Bureau.

Published under s. 35.93, Stats. Updated on the first day of each month.  Entire code is always current.  The Register date on each page

is the date the chapter was last  published. Register May 2018 No. 749

(3) STRUCTURAL STANDARDS.  (a)  General.  Design, construc-
tion, installation, practice and structural analysis shall conform to
the following nationally recognized standards.

(b)  Wood.  1.  Structural lumber, glue−laminated timber, timber
pilings, and fastenings shall be designed in accordance with the
“National Design Specification for Wood Construction” and the
“Design Values for Wood Construction,” a supplement to the
National Design Specification for Wood Construction, except the
provisions of section 4.1.7 shall also apply to reused lumber.
Reused lumber shall be considered to have a duration of load fac-
tor of 0.90.

2.  Span tables for joists and rafters approved by the depart-
ment may be used in lieu of designing by structural analysis.

3.  Sawn lumber that is not graded in accordance with the stan-
dards under subd. 1., shall use the NDS published allowable
design stresses for the lumber species using grade number 3 when
used for studs, stringers, rafters or joists and may use grade num-
ber 1 when used for beams, posts, or timbers.

(c)  Whole logs.  Camping units constructed of whole logs shall
conform to ICC 400, Standard on the Design and Construction of
Log Structures.

Note:  This standard requires the minimum log diameter to be 8 inches.

(d)  Fasteners.  1.  All building components shall be fastened
to withstand the dead load and live load.

2.  Fasteners shall comply with the schedule listed in Table
327.20−2, except other fastening methods may be allowed if engi-
neered under s. SPS 327.20 (3).

Table 327.20−2

MINIMUM FASTENER SCHEDULE TABLE

Other interior and exterior panel products and finishes installed per manufacturer requirements.

For engineered connectors, use manufacturer’s specified fasteners.

Description of Building Materials/Connection Number and Type of Fastener1 2 3

Floor Framing

Joist to joist, face nailed over support 3−8d

Joist to sill or girder, toe nail 3−8d

Band or rim joist to joist, end nail 3−16d

Band or rim joist to sill or top plate 2−16d at 16 o.c.

Bridging to joist, toe nail each end 2−8d

Built−up girder and beams, top loaded 10d at 32” o.c. at top and bottom 
and staggered and two at ends and at each splice

Built−up girder and beams, side−loaded 16d at 16” o.c. at top and bottom and staggered
and two at ends and at each splice

Ledger strip to beam, face nail 3−16d each joist

Joist on ledger to beam, toe nail 3−8d

Wall Framing

Sole plate to joist or blocking, face nail 2−16d at 16” o.c.

Top or sole plate to stud, end nail 2−16d

Stud to sole plate, toe nail 3−8d or 2–16d

Doubled studs, face nail 10d at 24” o.c.

Doubled top plates, face nail 10d at 24” o.c.

Doubled top plates, minimum 24” offset of end joints, face nail 8–16d
in lapped area

Top plates, laps and intersections, face nail 2–10d

Continuous header, two pieces 16d at 16” o.c. along each edge

Continuous header to stud, toe nail 4−8d

1” corner brace to each stud and plate, face nail 2−8d or 2 staples, 1 3/4”

Built−up corner studs 10d at 24” o.c.

Roof/Ceiling Framing
Ceiling joists to plate, toe nail 3−8d

Ceiling joist, laps over partitions, face nail 3–10d

Ceiling joist to parallel rafters, face nail 3−16d

Rafter to plate, toe nail (maximum 6 rafter span, engineered 2−16d
connector for longer)
Roof rafters to ridge, valley or hip rafters, toe nail 4−16d

Roof rafters to ridge, valley or hip rafters, face nail 3−16d

Collar ties to rafters, face nail 3−8d

Boards and planks

1” x 6” subfloor or less to each joist, face nail 2−8d or 2 staples, 1 3/4”
Wider than 1” x 6” subfloor toe to each joist, face nail 3−8d or 4 staples 1 3/4”
2” subfloor to joist or girder, blind and face nail 2−16d
1” x 6” roof or wall sheathing to each bearing, face nail 2−8d or 2 staples, 1 3/4”
1” x 8” roof or wall sheathing to each bearing, face nail 2−8d or 3 staples, 1 3/4”
Wider than 1” x 8” roof sheathing to each bearing, face nail 3−8d or 4 staples, 1 3/4”

2” planks 2−16d at each bearing

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/35.93
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/35.93
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.20(3)(b)1.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.20(3)


10−10 SPS 327.20 WISCONSIN ADMINISTRATIVE CODE

Published under s. 35.93, Wis. Stats., by the Legislative Reference Bureau.

Published under s. 35.93, Stats. Updated on the first day of each month.  Entire code is always current.  The Register date on each page

is the date the chapter was last  published.Register May 2018 No. 749

Panel Sheathing

Spacing of Fastener

Intermediate

Material Fastener Edges       Supports

Engineered wood panel for
subfloor and roof sheathing
and wall corner wind bracing
to framing

5 /16” to 1/2” 6d common or deformed nail or staple, 1 1/2” 6” 12”4

5 /8” to 3/4” 8d smooth or common, 6d deformed nail, or  6” 12”4

staple, 14 ga. 1 3/4”
7 /8” to 1” 8d common or deformed nail 6” 12”

1 1 /8” to 1 1/4” 10d smooth or common or 8d deformed nail 6” 12”

Combination
subfloor/ underlayment
to framing

3/4” or less 6d deformed or 8d smooth or common nail 6” 12”

7/8” to 1” 8d smooth, common or deformed nail 6” 12”

1 1 /8” to 1 1/4” 10d smooth or common or 8d deformed nail 6” 12”

Wood panel siding to framing
1/2” or less 6d corrosion−resistant siding and casing nails 6” 12”

5/8” 8d corrosion−resistant siding and casing nails 6” 12”

1/2” structural cellulosic 1 1/2” galvanized roofing nail; 8d common nail; 3” 6”
fiberboard sheathing staple 16 ga., 1 1/2” long

25/32” structural cellulosic 1 3/4” galvanized roofing nail; 8d common nail; 3” 6”
fiberboard sheathing staple 16 ga., 1 3/4” long

1/2” gypsum sheathing5  1 1/2” galvanized roofing nail; 6d common nail; 4” 8”
staple galvanized 1 1/2” long; 1 1/4” screws, Type
W or S

5/8” gypsum sheathing5 1 3/4” galvanized roofing nail; 8d common nail; 7” 7”
staple galvanized 1 5/8” long; 1 5/8” screws, Type
W or S

1 All nails are smooth−common, box or deformed shank except where otherwise stated.
2 Nail is a general description and may be T−head, modified round head or round head.
3 Staples are 16−gauge wire, unless otherwise noted, and have a minimum 7 /16” o.d. crown width.
4 Staples shall be spaced at not more than 10” o.c. at intermediate supports for floors.
5 Apply vertically 4” x 8” or 4” x 9” panels.

(4) ALTERNATE MATERIALS AND STANDARDS.  No part of this
code is intended to prohibit or discourage use of alternate, equiva-
lent materials or standards or the construction of innovative or
nonconventional camping units.

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr., eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Register March 2018
No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

SPS 327.21 Exits.  Exits, doors, and hallways shall be con-
structed as specified in this section.

(1) EXITS FROM THE FIRST FLOOR.  (a)  A first floor level shall
have at least one exit door that discharges to grade.  This exit may
include interior or exterior stairs.

(b)  A first floor level shall have at least one egress window
complying with sub. (3) on that floor level.

(c)  If a camping unit has more than one room on the first floor,
the exit door and egress window shall be located in different
rooms.

(d)  If there are bedrooms on the first floor, each must have an
egress window that complies with sub. (3).

(2) EXITS FROM LOFTS.  At least one stairway or ladder exit
shall be provided to the floor below for a loft.

(3) WINDOWS USED FOR EXITING.  Windows which are installed
for exit purposes shall comply with the requirements of this sub-
section.

(a)  The window shall be openable from the inside without the
use of tools or the removal of a sash. If equipped with a storm or
screen, it shall be openable from the inside.

(b)  1.  The nominal size of the net clear window opening shall
be at least 20 inches by 24 inches irrespective of height or width.
Nominal dimensions shall be determined by rounding up fractions
of inches if they are 1/2−inch or greater or rounding down frac-
tions of inches if they are less than 1/2−inch.

2.  No portion of the window, including stops, stools, meeting
rails, and operator arms, shall infringe on the required opening.

(c)  The area and dimension requirements of par. (b) may be
infringed on by a storm window.

(d)  For any window used for exiting, the lowest point of clear
opening shall be no more than 60 inches above the floor.

(4) DOORS USED FOR EXITING.  (a)  A door used for exiting from
a camping unit shall be a swing−type door at least 80 inches high
by 32 inches wide.

(b)  All exit doors shall be openable from the interior without
the use of a key.

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr., eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Register March 2018
No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

SPS 327.22 Stairways and elevated areas.
(1) HANDRAILS.  (a)  A flight of stairs with more than 3 risers shall
be provided with at least one handrail for the full length of the
flight.

(b)  Handrails shall be designed and constructed to withstand
a 200 pound load applied in any direction.

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/35.93
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/35.93
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.21(3)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.21(3)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.21(3)(b)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc


10−11  SPS 327.28SAFETY AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Published under s. 35.93, Wis. Stats., by the Legislative Reference Bureau.

Published under s. 35.93, Stats. Updated on the first day of each month.  Entire code is always current.  The Register date on each page

is the date the chapter was last  published. Register May 2018 No. 749

(c)  Exterior handrails shall be constructed of metal, decay
resistant or pressure−treated wood, or shall be protected from the
weather.

(2) GUARDS.  (a)  Except as provided in par. (b),all openings
between floors, and open sides of landings, platforms, balconies,
lofts, or porches that are more than 16 inches above grade or a
floor shall be protected with guards.

(b)  For exterior applications, open sides of decks, landings,
porches, or similar structures that are more than 24 inches above
grade shall be protected with guards.  The 24 inch vertical mea-
surement shall be taken from the lowest point within 3 feet hori-
zontally from the edge of the deck, landing, porch, or similar
structure.

(c)  Guards shall be constructed to prevent the through−passage
of a sphere with a diameter of 4 3/8 inches, when applying a force
of 4 pounds.

(d)  This subsection does not apply to window wells, egress
wells, and retaining walls.

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr., eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Register March 2018
No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

SPS 327.23 Ladders.  Ladders which are used as part of
a required exit shall be designed to withstand loads of at least 200
pounds.

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr., eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Register March 2018
No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

SPS 327.24 Ceiling height.  All habitable rooms,
kitchens, hallways, bathrooms, and corridors shall have a ceiling
height of at least 7 feet, except as follows:

(1) (a)  Rooms may have ceiling heights of less than 7 feet pro-
vided at least 50% of the room’s floor area has a ceiling height of
at least 7 feet. Any area with a ceiling height of less than 5 feet may
be ignored in this calculation.

(b)  The 50% limit in par. (a) does not apply to subs. (3) to (7).

(2) Beams and girders or other projections may project to no
more than 8 inches below the required ceiling height.

(3) The ceiling height extending back from the front edge of
a water closet may slope to below 7 feet, but may not go below 5
feet until beyond the back of the water closet.

(4) The ceiling height extending back from the front edge of
a lavatory may be less than 7 feet, but may not go below 5 feet until
beyond the back of the lavatory.

(5) A ceiling height of less than 7 feet may be provided
between the rear rim of a bathtub and a wall of the room abutting
that rim, or between the side rim and a room wall abutting that rim.

(6) A ceiling height of less than 7 feet may be provided
between the rear wall of a shower stall and a wall of the room abut-
ting that rear wall, or between the side wall of a shower and a room
wall abutting that side wall.

(7) A ceiling height of less than 7 feet may be provided in a loft
used as a habitable room.

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr., eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Register March 2018
No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

SPS 327.25 Fireblocking.  (1) FIREBLOCKING LOCA-
TIONS.  Fireblocking shall be provided in all of the following loca-
tions:

(a)  In concealed spaces of walls and partitions, including
furred spaces, at the ceiling and floor levels.

(b)  At all interconnections between concealed vertical and
horizontal spaces including the attachment between a carport and
a camping unit.

(c)  In concealed spaces between stair stringers at the top and
bottom of the run and at any intervening floor level.

(d)  At all openings around wires, cables, vents, pipes, ducts,
chimneys, and fireplaces at ceiling and floor level.

(2) FIREBLOCKING MATERIALS.  Fireblocking shall consist of
one of the following:

(a)  2−inch nominal lumber.

(b)  Two layers of one−inch nominal lumber.

(c)  One thickness of 3/4−inch nominal plywood or wood struc-
tural panel with any joints backed with the same material.

(d)  One thickness of 1/2−inch gypsum wallboard, face nailed
or face screwed to solid wood, with any joints backed with the
same material.

(e)  Fiberglass or mineral wool batt insulation may be used if
both of the following conditions are met:

1.  The least dimension of the opening may not exceed 4
inches.

2.  The batt shall be installed to fill the entire thickness of the
opening or stud cavity.

(f)  For wires, cables, pipes, and vents only, non−shrinking
caulk, putty mortar, or similar material may be used provided no
dimension of the opening exceeds 1/2 inch around the penetrating
object.

(g)  For chimneys, fireplaces, and metal vents, fireblocking
shall be metal, cement board, or other noncombustible material.

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr., eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Register March 2018
No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

SPS 327.26 Smoke detectors.  (1) A listed and labeled
battery−operated smoke alarm shall be installed in all of the fol-
lowing locations:

(a)  If a camping unit has a loft, an alarm shall be installed inside
the loft.  An alarm is not required to be installed outside of the loft.

(b)  On a floor level that contains one or more sleeping rooms,
an alarm shall be installed inside each sleeping room and an alarm
shall be installed outside of the sleeping rooms.

(c)  An alarm shall be installed on a floor level that does not
contain a sleeping room.

Note:  Section 101.645 (3), Stats., requires the owner of a dwelling to install a func-
tional smoke detector in the basement of the dwelling and on each floor level except
the attic or storage area of each dwelling unit.  The occupant of such a dwelling unit
shall maintain any smoke detector in that unit, except that if any occupant who is not
the owner, or any state, county, city, village or town officer, agent or employee
charged under statute or municipal ordinance with powers or duties involving inspec-
tion of real or personal property, gives written notice to the owner that the smoke
detector is not functional the owner shall provide, within 5 days after receipt of that
notice, any maintenance necessary to make that smoke detector functional.

(2) Smoke alarms and detectors shall be installed and main-
tained in accordance with the manufacturer’s specifications.
Interconnection of smoke alarms and detectors is not required.

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr., eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Register March 2018
No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

SPS 327.27 Carbon monoxide alarms.  (1) GENERAL.

A listed and labeled carbon monoxide alarm shall be installed
within 10 feet of a fireplace or fuel−burning appliance.

(2) ELECTRICAL SERVICE.  If electrical service for a camping
unit is provided by a public utility, a carbon monoxide alarm
required under sub. (1) shall be continuously powered by the
camping unit electrical service and shall have a backup battery
power supply.

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr., eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Register March 2018
No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

SPS 327.28 Protection against decay and termites.
(1) Wood used in any of the applications under this section shall
meet all of the following requirements:

(a)  The wood shall be labeled and pressure treated with preser-
vative in accordance with an AWPA standard or shall be naturally
durable and decay−resistant or shall be engineered to be decay
resistant.

(b)  The wood shall be pressure treated with preservative or
shall be naturally termite−resistant unless additional steps are
taken to make the wood termite−resistant.

(2) Wood used in the following locations shall be as required
under sub. (1):

(a)  Resting directly upon or embedded in earth.

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/35.93
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/35.93
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.22(2)(b)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.24(1)(a)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.24(3)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.24(7)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/101.645(3)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.27(1)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.28(1)


10−12 SPS 327.28 WISCONSIN ADMINISTRATIVE CODE

Published under s. 35.93, Wis. Stats., by the Legislative Reference Bureau.

Published under s. 35.93, Stats. Updated on the first day of each month.  Entire code is always current.  The Register date on each page

is the date the chapter was last  published.Register May 2018 No. 749

(b)  Floor joists or sleepers that meet all of the following condi-
tions:

1.  The joists or sleepers are protected from the weather.

2.  The joists or sleepers are within 18 inches above a lower
floor surface, deck or soil.

(c)  Floor joists exterior to the camping unit that are within 18
inches above exterior grade, unless protected with a moisture bar-
rier.

Note:  Acceptable moisture barriers for this application include 3/4 −inch exterior
preservative−treated plywood, or ice dam protection material listed as meeting the
requirements of ASTM D 1970 or vapor retarder material, provided they are pro-
tected from physical and UV light damage.

(d)  Girders that span directly over and within 12 inches of
earth.

(e)  Sills and rim joists that rest on concrete or masonry and are
also below grade or within 8 inches above final exterior grade.

(f)  1.  Siding and sheathing in contact with concrete, masonry,
or earth and within 6 inches above final exterior grade.

2.  Siding and sheathing in contact with concrete or masonry
and within 2 inches above an impervious surface.

(g)  Ends of wood structural members and their shims resting
on or supported in masonry or concrete walls and having clear-
ances of less than 1/2 inch on the top, sides, and ends.

(h)  Bottom plates or sole plates of walls that rest on concrete
or masonry and that are below exterior grade or less than 8 inches
above final exterior grade.

(i)  Columns in direct contact with concrete or masonry unless
supported by a structural pedestal or plinth block at least one inch
above the floor.

(j)  Any structural part of an outdoor deck, including the deck-
ing.

(k)  Permanent wood foundations.

(3) Wood girders that rest directly on exterior concrete or
masonry shall be protected by one of the following methods:

(a)  The wood shall be pressure treated with preservative or
shall be a naturally durable and decay−resistant species.

(b)  Material, such as pressure−treated plywood, flashing mate-
rial, steel shims, or water−resistant membrane material shall be
placed between the wood and the concrete or masonry.

(4) All pressure−treated wood and plywood shall be identified
by a quality mark or certificate of inspection of an approved
inspection agency which maintains continued supervision, test-
ing, and inspection over the quality of the product.

Note:  Heartwood of redwood, cypress, black walnut, catalpa, chestnut, sage
orange, red mulberry, white oak, or cedar lumber are considered by the department
to be naturally decay−resistant.  Heartwood of bald cypress, redwood, and eastern red
cedar are considered by the department to be naturally termite resistant.

(5) (a)  Fasteners for pressure−preservative treated wood and
fire−retardant−treated wood shall meet one of the following
requirements:

1.  The fastener is a steel bolt with a diameter of 1/2 inch or
greater.

2.  The fastener is made of stainless steel.

3.  The fastener is made of hot−dipped, zinc−galvanized steel
with the coating weight and thickness labeled as complying with
ASTM A 153.

4.  The fastener is made of steel with a mechanically−
deposited zinc coating labeled as complying with ASTM B 695,
Class 55 or greater.

5.  The fastener has coating types and weights in accordance
with the fastener manufacturer’s recommendations.  In the
absence of the manufacturer’s recommendations subd. 1., 2., 3.,
or 4. shall apply.

Note:  “Zinc plated,” “zinc coated,” “chrome plated,” etc., fasteners do not neces-
sarily comply with either of these standards.

(b)  When a fastener is used with a hanger or other metal fixture,
the fastener shall be of the same material as the hanger or metal
fixture.

Note:  When separate pieces are in close contact, zinc corrodes rapidly in the pres-
ence of plain steel. Zinc corrodes much more rapidly in the presence of stainless steel.

(c)  For the purposes of this section, a fastener includes nails,
screws, and bolts with nuts and washers.

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr., eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Register March 2018
No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

SPS 327.29 Floor design.  Floors shall support all dead
loads plus the minimum unit live loads as set forth in s. SPS
327.20.  The live loads shall be applied to act vertically and uni-
formly to each square foot of horizontal floor area.

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr., eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Register March 2018
No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

SPS 327.30 Wood floors in contact with the ground.
Wood floors in contact with the ground shall be designed and con-
structed in accordance with the wood−foundation standards
adopted in Table 327.19−2.

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr., eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Register March 2018
No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

SPS 327.31 Wood frame floors.  Unless designed
through structural analysis, wood frame floors shall comply with
the following requirements:

(1) FLOOR JOISTS.  (a)  Floor joists shall comply with the struc-
tural requirements and live load determination under s. SPS
327.20.

(b)  Where the joists of a floor system are parallel to, and
located between bearing walls above and below, the joists shall be
doubled.

(2) FLOOR TRUSSES.  Metal plate connected wood floor trusses
shall be designed in accordance with the Design Specifications for
Metal Plate Connected Parallel Chord Wood Trusses and the
National Design Specification for Wood Construction.  Truss
members shall not be cut, bored or notched.

(3) GIRDERS AND BEAMS.  (a)  Wood girders and beams shall be
fitted at the post or column.  Adjoining ends shall be fastened to
each other to transfer horizontal loads across the joint.  Beams
shall also be fastened to the posts with framing anchors, angle
clips, or equivalent.

(b)  Where intermediate beams are used, they shall rest on top
of the girders; or shall be supported by ledgers or blocks fastened
to the sides of the girders; or they may be supported by approved
metal hangers into which the ends of the beams shall be fitted.

(c)  Lateral restraint for all wood beams shall be provided at all
columns using a saddle or other approved connection where the
beam meets one of the following conditions:

1.  The beam is not restrained at both ends.

2.  The beam is more than 11 1/4 inches deep using actual mea-
surement.

Note:  A saddle supports the beam on the bottom and allows for the through−con-
nection of fasteners into the side of the beam.

(4) BEARING AND END CONFIGURATION.  (a)  Sawn lumber.  1.
‘Joists.’  Wood joists made of sawn lumber shall meet the follow-
ing bearing requirements:

a.  Wood joists supported on wood or metal shall have a bear-
ing surface of at least 1 1/2−inches measured from the end of the
joist.

b.  The tail end of a floor joist may not extend past the edge
of a beam by more than the depth of the floor joist.

c.  Wood floor joists with ends that intersect over a beam shall
have the ends overlap at least 3 inches and be securely fastened
together with at least two 12d common nails or the ends shall be
butt−jointed or face−jointed and fastened with ties, straps, plates
or solid blocking.

2.  ‘Beams and girders.’  Beams and girders made of sawn
lumber shall have a bearing surface on their supports of at least 3
inches parallel to the beam or girder and be at least as wide as the
beam or girder.

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/35.93
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/35.93
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.28(5)(a)1.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.28(5)(a)2.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.28(5)(a)3.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.28(5)(a)4.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.20
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.20
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.20
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.20


10−13  SPS 327.31SAFETY AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Published under s. 35.93, Wis. Stats., by the Legislative Reference Bureau.

Published under s. 35.93, Stats. Updated on the first day of each month.  Entire code is always current.  The Register date on each page

is the date the chapter was last  published. Register May 2018 No. 749

(b)  Engineered wood products.  Bearing surface for engi-
neered wood products shall be in accordance with the manufactur-
er’s instructions provided those instructions were developed
through structural analysis or product testing and are applicable
to the configuration.

(5) NOTCHING AND BORING.  Notching and boring of beams or
girders is prohibited unless determined through structural analy-
sis.

(a)  Notching of floor joists.  1.  Notches located in the top or
bottom of floor joists shall not have a depth exceeding 1/6 the
depth of the joist, shall not have a length exceeding 1/3 the joist
depth nor be located in the middle 1/3 of the span of the joist.

2.  Where floor joists are notched on the ends, the notch shall
not exceed 1/4 the depth of the joist.  Notches over supports may
extend the full bearing width of the support.

(b)  Boring of floor joists.  1.  ‘General.’  A hole may not be
bored in a floor joist within 2 inches of a notch or another hole.
In no case shall the distance between adjacent holes be less than
the diameter of the larger hole.

2.  ‘Holes near the edge.’  Holes bored in the top or bottom 2
inches of a joist shall follow the limitations for notching under par.
(a).

3.  ‘Other holes.’  Holes bored in floor joists that are not within
2 inches of the top or bottom of the joist shall have their diameter
limited to 1/3 the depth of the joist.

(c)  Engineered wood products.  Notching or boring of engi-
neered wood products shall be done in accordance with the manu-
facturer’s instructions provided those instructions were devel-
oped through structural analysis or product testing.

(6) OVERHANG OF FLOORS.  (a)  General.  Except as provided
in pars. (b) and (c), a floor joist overhang shall be cantilevered
beyond the outer edge of the supporting wall below it by no more
than the actual depth of the joist or shall be designed through struc-
tural analysis in accordance with s. SPS 327.20 (3).

(b)  Joist overhangs parallel to the main floor framing system.
Joist overhangs that are extensions of, and parallel to, the main
floor framing system may extend beyond the depth of the joist
without structural analysis provided they meet all of the following
conditions:

1.  The overhang is cantilevered no more than 2 feet beyond
the outer edge of the supporting wall below it.

2.  a.  The overhang supports a uniform load limited to the
weight of the bearing wall and the tributary roof area above it.

b.  The tributary length of the roof area, excluding the eave
overhang, is no more than 2 feet greater than the actual length of
the joist directly below.

c.  The eave overhang is no more than 2 feet.
Note:  The tributary length is usually half the span of the joist or rafter.

3.  The joist overhang does not support any concentrated
loads.  For the purposes of this subsection, a framed opening in the
wall with a rough opening of 4 feet or less shall be considered uni-
form loading.

4.  a.  The cantilevered joist is doubled at the supporting wall.

b.  The doubled joist length extends inward beyond the inner
edge of the supporting wall by the same distance as the cantilever.

c.  The added joist member is secured to the main joist.

(c)  Joist overhangs perpendicular to the main floor framing
system.  Joist overhangs that are perpendicular to the main floor
framing system, or lookout joists, may extend beyond the depth
of the joist without structural analysis provided they meet all of the
following conditions:

1.  The joist overhang is cantilevered no more than 2 feet
beyond the outer edge of the supporting wall below it.

2.  a.  A double floor joist is used to support the lookout joist.

b.  The double floor joist is located a distance of at least 2 times
the cantilever length inward from the outer edge of the supporting
wall below.

c.  The lookout joists are fastened to the double joist with
metal hangers.

3.  The joist overhang supports no more than either a non−
bearing wall or a wall that supports only a roof which spans no
more than the floor overhang cantilever length plus the eave over-
hang.

(d)  Other joist overhangs.  All overhangs longer than the depth
of the supporting joist that do not meet all of the conditions under
par. (b) or (c) shall be designed through structural analysis.

(7) FLOOR OPENINGS.  Trimmers and headers shall be doubled
when the span of the header exceeds 4 feet.  Headers which span
more than 6 feet shall have the ends supported by joist hangers or
framing anchors, unless the ends are supported on a partition or
beam.  Joists more than 8 feet long that frame into headers shall
be supported on metal framing anchors or on ledger strips of at
least 2 inches by 2 inches nominal.

(8) FLOOR SHEATHING, BOARDS AND PLANKS.  (a)  Plywood
sheathing.  Plywood sheathing used for floors shall be limited to
the allowable loads and spans shown in Table 327.31−A.

(b)  Combination subfloor−underlayment.  Combination sub-
floor−underlayment shall be installed in accordance with Table
327.31−B.

(c)  Floor boards.  Where wood boards are used for floor
sheathing, the boards shall comply with the minimum thicknesses
shown in Table 327.31−C.

(d)  Planks.  Planks shall be tongue and groove or splined and
at least 2 inches, nominal, in thickness.  Planks shall terminate
over beams unless the joints are end matched.  The planks shall be
laid so that no continuous line of joints will occur except at points
of support.  Planks shall be nailed to each beam.

(9) BRIDGING.  (a)  Sawn lumber.  Bridging shall be provided
for sawn lumber framing at intervals not exceeding 8 feet where
the nominal depth to thickness ratio is greater than 4 to 1.

Note:  This 4:1 ratio means bridging is required for wood−framed floors having
nominal 2X10 or deeper solid−sawn−lumber joists, to provide restraint against rota-
tion or lateral displacement.

(b)  Engineered products.  Bridging shall be provided for engi-
neered framing products in accordance with the manufacturer’s
recommendations.

(10) SILL PLATES.  All of the following requirements apply to
a sawn−lumber sill plate with uniform loading that is partially
extended beyond the load−bearing surface of a foundation wall in
order to put the exterior surface of an upper−lying wall flush with
or beyond the exterior surface of insulation that is placed on the
outside of the foundation wall:

(a)  The center of any anchor bolt shall be set back from the side
edge of the sill plate by a distance of at least 4 times the diameter
of the bolt.

(b)  The thickness of the concrete or mortar cover around any
anchor bolt shall comply with ACI 318 section 7.7.

Note:  Under ACI 318 section 7.7, the minimum cover for a 5/8−inch−diameter or
smaller bolt is 1 1/2 inches.

(c)  With wood floor joists that are parallel to the foundation
wall, the sill plate may not extend beyond the load−bearing sur-
face of the wall by more than one−half of the nominal thickness
of the joist that bears on the sill plate.

(d)  As used throughout this subchapter and in the standards
that the subchapter incorporates by reference, the shorter side of
the cross−sectional area of a wood member is the thickness of the
member.  The longer side of the cross−sectional area is the depth,
when the longer side is vertical; and it is the width when the longer
side is horizontal.

Note:  Under sub. (6), wood floor joists that are perpendicular to the foundation
wall can extend beyond the foundation wall by a distance of up to the depth of the
joist.

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/35.93
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/35.93
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.31(5)(a)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.31(6)(b)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.31(6)(c)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.20(3)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.31(6)(b)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.31(6)(c)


10−14 SPS 327.31 WISCONSIN ADMINISTRATIVE CODE

Published under s. 35.93, Wis. Stats., by the Legislative Reference Bureau.

Published under s. 35.93, Stats. Updated on the first day of each month.  Entire code is always current.  The Register date on each page

is the date the chapter was last  published.Register May 2018 No. 749

Table 327.31−A

ALLOWABLE SPANS FOR PLYWOOD FLOOR SHEATHING CONTINUOUS OVER TWO OR 

MORE SPANS AND FACE GRAIN PERPENDICULAR TO SUPPORTS1

Span Rating2 Plywood Thickness Maximum span3

32/16 15/32”, 1/2”, 5/8” 16”5

40/20 19/32”, 5/8”, 3/4”, 7/8” 20”4,5

48/24 23/32”, 3/4”, 7/8” 24”
1 These values apply to C−D, C−C, and Structural I and II grades only.  Spans shall be limited to values shown because of possible effect of concen-
trated loads.
2 Span Rating appears on all panels in the construction grades listed in footnote 1.
3 Plywood edges shall have approved tongue and groove joints or shall be supported with blocking, unless 1/4 inch minimum thickness underlay-
ment or 1 1/2 inches of approved cellular or lightweight concrete is installed or finished floor is 25/32−inch wood strip. Allowable uniform load
based on deflection of 1/360 of span is 165 pounds per square foot.
4 For joists spaced 24 inches on center, plywood sheathing with Span Rating 40/20 or greater can be used for subfloors when supporting 1 1/2
inches lightweight concrete.
5 May be 24 inches if 25/32−inch wood strip flooring is installed at right angles to joists.

Table 327.31−B

MINIMUM THICKNESS FOR PLYWOOD COMBINATION 

SUBFLOOR−UNDERLAYMENT.  PLYWOOD CONTINUOUS OVER TWO OR MORE 

SPANS AND FACE GRAIN PERPENDICULAR TO SUPPORTS1,2

Maximum Support Spacing3

16” o.c 20” o.c 24” o.c
Plywood Panel Panel Panel
Species Thickness Thickness Thickness

Plywood Grade Group (inches) (inches) (inches)
Sanded exterior type 1 1/2 5/8 3/4

2 & 3 5/8 3/4 7/8

4 3/4 7/8 1
Underlayment C−C All Groups APA Rated Sheathing and APA Rated
Plugged Sturd−I−Floor4 Sturd−I−Floor shall be installed consistent

with their rating.
1 Spans shall be limited to values shown, based on possible effect of concentrated loads.
2 Unsupported edges shall be tongue and groove or blocked except where 1/4 inch underlayment or 25/32−inch finish floor is used.
3 Underlayment, C−C Plugged, sanded exterior type: allowable uniform load based on deflection of L/360 span for spans 24 inches or less is 125
psf; and for spans 48 inches, 65 psf.
4 The department will accept subfloor underlayment panels such as Sturd−I−Floor which meet the requirements of APA manufacturing specifica-
tions for Sturd−I−Floor panels.

Table 327.31−C

MINIMUM THICKNESS OF FLOOR BOARDS

Minimum Net Thickness

Joist Spacing Perpendicular to Joist Diagonal to Joist

24” 11/16” 3/4”

16” 5/8” 5/8”
History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr., eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Register March 2018 No. 747, eff. 4−1−18; (6) (d) (title) created under s. 13.92 (4) (b) 1., Stats., Register March

2018 No. 747.

SPS 327.32 Decks.  A deck attached to a camping unit or
any detached deck that serves an exit from a camping unit that
meets the following requirements is in compliance with this code:

(1) A deck shall be constructed to support the actual dead load
and a minimum live load of 40 pounds per square inch acting on
it without exceeding the allowable stresses of the material.

(2) A deck attached to a camping unit shall have a ledger
attachment that meets the requirement under sub. (1).

(3) Corrosion−resistant flashing shall be installed where a
deck attaches to the wall or floor assembly of a camping unit.

(4) The handrail and guard requirements of s. SPS 327.22.

(5) The decay protection requirements of s. SPS 327.28.
History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr., eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Register March 2018

No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

SPS 327.33 Exterior covering.  (1) GENERAL.  The exte-
rior walls shall be covered with a permanent weather resistant fin-
ish.

(2) DURING CONSTRUCTION.  During construction, wall cavity
insulation may not be installed until a water−resistant covering is

in place over the wall cavity and windows, doors and a roof with
at least underlayment are installed.

Note:  An example of acceptable water−resistant covering for a wall is foam
sheathing with permanently taped joints.

(3) FLASHING.  (a)  Corrosion−resistant flashing shall be
installed in the exterior wall to prevent water from entering the
wall cavity or coming in contact with the structural framing com-
ponents.

(b)  The flashing shall extend to the surface of the exterior wall
finish and prevent water from reentering the exterior wall.

(c)  1.  Any joints between 2 pieces of flashing that form a verti-
cal joint shall be lapped a minimum of 6 inches and sealed.

2.  Any joints between 2 pieces of flashing that form a horizon-
tal joint shall be lapped a minimum of 2 inches and sealed unless
otherwise specified by the flashing manufacturer.

3.  Sealants used for flashing shall be exterior grade and shall
be compatible with the materials being sealed.

(d)  Flashing shall be provided at all of the following locations:

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/35.93
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/35.93
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/13.92(4)(b)1.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.32(1)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.22
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.28
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc


10−15  SPS 327.34SAFETY AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Published under s. 35.93, Wis. Stats., by the Legislative Reference Bureau.

Published under s. 35.93, Stats. Updated on the first day of each month.  Entire code is always current.  The Register date on each page

is the date the chapter was last  published. Register May 2018 No. 749

1.  At the top of all exterior door and window openings, unless
using self−flashing windows that provide at least one inch of
flashing around the opening, including the corners.

2.  At the intersection of chimneys or other masonry construc-
tion with frame walls.

3.  Under and at the ends of masonry, wood, or metal copings
and sills.

4.  Continuously above all projecting wood trim.

5.  Where porches, decks, or stairs attach to a wall or floor
assembly of wood frame construction.

6.  At wall and roof intersections.

7.  At built−in gutters.

8.  Along the bottom of door openings that are elevated
above−grade.

Note:  Flashing placed along the bottom of a door opening that is elevated above−
grade can subsequently accommodate adding a deck outside the door.

(e)  For a roof that intersects with an upper−lying head wall and
rake wall, such as where a dormer is provided, the vertical metal
flashing along the rake wall shall extend down the roof at least
one−half inch past the vertical flashing on the head wall.  A head
wall as addressed in this paragraph intersects a sloping roof at a
horizontal line along the top of a roof segment.  A rake wall inter-
sects a sloping roof along the side of a roof segment.

(f)  For a roof eave that intersects with a sidewall, the end of the
roof flashing shall be installed so that it diverts water away from
the sidewall and onto the roof or into the gutter.

(4) WATER−RESISTIVE BARRIER REQUIREMENTS.  (a)  General.
1.  Exterior walls of wood or metal frame construction shall be
provided with a water−resistive barrier from the highest point to
the bottom of the permanent weather−resistant covering.

Note:  Acceptable water−resistive barrier materials include polymeric−based
house wraps and spray−applied water−resistive barriers installed per the manufactur-
er’s instructions, #15 or greater asphalt−saturated felts that comply with ASTM D 226
for type I felt and extruded foam sheathing with permanently taped joints. Duct tape
or similar materials will not result in a permanently taped joint.

2.  Structural products with an integral water−resistive barrier
may be approved as a complete assembly.

(b)  Material compatibility.  The water−resistive barrier mate-
rial shall be compatible with the other materials in the wall with
which it will come into contact.

Note:  Spray−applied water−resistive barriers may not be compatible with foam
plastic insulation.

(c)  Performance requirements.  1.  Polymer−based house
wraps shall meet all of the following requirements:

a.  A water vapor permeability rating of 5 perms or higher
when tested in accordance with ASTM E96.

b.  An acceptable water−resistance rating determined in
accordance with ASTM D779, AATCC 127 or CCMC 07102.

Note:  Asphalt−saturated felt or “tar paper” is not a polymeric−based house wrap.
Note:  For more information on the water−resistance tests and their results, see the

International Code Council Evaluation Services Acceptance Criteria AC 38.

2.  Spray−applied water−resistive barriers shall be approved
under the International Code Council Evaluation Services.

Note:  For approval criteria, see ICC−ES acceptance criteria AC 212 or successor
document.

(d)  Application.  1.  Horizontal seams in sheet or strip material
shall be overlapped such that the upper layer extends over the
lower layer at least 2 inches.

2.  Vertical seams in sheet or strip materials shall be over-
lapped at least 6 inches.

3.  Any rips, tears or voids shall be patched in accordance with
subds. 1. and 2.

(e)  Penetrations.  1.  Penetrations caused by fasteners of the
water−resistive barrier or the weather−resistant exterior covering
do not require sealing.

2.  Penetrations of 5 square inches or less with an annular
space of no more than 1/2 inch shall be sealed with caulk or similar
material.

3.  Penetrations of greater than 5 square inches shall be flashed
in accordance with sub. (3).

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr., eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Register March 2018
No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

SPS 327.34 Wood frame walls.  Unless designed
through structural analysis, wood frame walls shall comply with
the following requirements:

(1) STUD CONFIGURATION.  Studs in the exterior walls shall be
placed with the wide faces perpendicular to the plane of the wall.

Note:  See s. SPS 327.28 for requirements on treating wood for decay and termite
resistance.

(2) TOP PLATES.  (a)  General.  Except as allowed under par. (c),
top plates shall be provided and configured as follows:

1.  Studs at bearing walls shall be capped with double top
plates.

2.  End joints in double top plates shall be offset at least 2 stud
spaces.

3.  Double top plates shall be overlapped at the corners and at
intersections of partitions.

4.  The plate immediately above the stud may have a joint only
when directly over the stud.

(b)  Notching and boring.  1.  When piping or ductwork is
placed in an exterior wall or an interior load−bearing wall, such
that at least half of the top plate is removed, the plate shall be rein-
forced with a steel angle at least 2 inches by 2 inches by 20 gauge
thick.

Note:  20 gauge is approximately 0.036 inch.

2.  The steel angle shall span the gap and extend at least to the
midpoint of the adjacent stud spaces.

3.  Other equivalent materials may be used in accordance with
s. SPS 327.20.

(c)  Exceptions.  1.  A single top plate may be used in place of
a double top plate provided a rafter is located directly over the
studs and the plate is securely tied at the end joints, corners and
intersecting walls.  Joints may occur in single top plates only when
directly over a stud.

2.  A continuous header, consisting of two 2−inch members set
on edge, may be used in lieu of a double plate if tied to the adjacent
wall.

(3) WALL OPENINGS.  (a)  Headers.  Where doors or windows
occur, headers shall be used to carry the load across the opening.

(b)  Header support.  Headers in bearing walls shall be sup-
ported in accordance with the following:

1.  Headers 3 feet or less in length shall be directly supported
on each end by one of the following:

a.  The single common stud and a shoulder stud.

b.  The single common stud with a framing anchor attached.

2.  Headers greater than 3 feet but less than or equal to 6 feet
in length shall be directly supported on each end by the single
common stud and a shoulder stud.

3.  Headers greater than 6 feet in length shall be directly sup-
ported on each end by the single common stud and 2 shoulder
studs.

(4) NOTCHING.  Notching and boring of columns or posts is
prohibited unless designed through structural analysis.  Studs
shall not be cut or bored more than 1/3 the depth of the stud, unless
the stud is reinforced.

(5) PARTITIONS.  Load−bearing partitions shall be placed over
beams, girders, or other load−bearing partitions.  Load−bearing
partitions running at right angles to the joists shall not be offset
from the main girder or walls more than the depth of the joist
unless the joists are designed to carry the load.

(6) POSTS AND COLUMNS.  (a)   General.  1.  Posts and columns
shall be installed to resist imposed loads.

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/35.93
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/35.93
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.33(4)(d)1.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.33(4)(d)2.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.33(3)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.28
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.34(2)(c)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.20


10−16 SPS 327.34 WISCONSIN ADMINISTRATIVE CODE

Published under s. 35.93, Wis. Stats., by the Legislative Reference Bureau.

Published under s. 35.93, Stats. Updated on the first day of each month.  Entire code is always current.  The Register date on each page

is the date the chapter was last  published.Register May 2018 No. 749

2.  Posts and columns shall bear directly over the middle 1/3
of a footing.

3.  Posts and columns shall be restrained at the top and bottom
to resist displacement.

4.  All columns shall be positively attached to the beams they
support using clips, straps or saddles.

5.  Posts and columns that use a height adjustment mechanism
shall have the mechanism imbedded in concrete or permanently
disabled after installation.

(b)  Bearing surface.  Posts and columns shall have a steel bear-
ing plate affixed to one or both ends to distribute any applied loads
and to prevent fiber crushing of any structural member being sup-
ported.

(c)  Steel posts or columns.  Steel posts or columns shall be
sized according to one of the following methods:

1.  Manufactured columns shall follow the manufacturer’s
testing and listing.

2.  Columns made of steel stock, not meeting the requirements
of subd. 1., shall follow a nationally accepted design specification
or the size shall be determined through structural analysis or load
testing.

(d)  Wood posts or columns.  Wood posts or columns shall be
sized according to Table 327.34 or the size shall be determined
through structural analysis or load testing.

(7) FOUNDATION CRIPPLE WALLS.  (a)  Foundation cripple walls
shall be framed with studs at least as large as the studs above.

(b)  When more than 4 feet in height, cripple walls shall be
framed with studs needed for an additional floor level.

(c)  Cripple walls shall be sheathed on at least one side for its
entire length with a wood structural panel that is fastened to both
the top and bottom plates or the cripple walls shall be constructed
of solid blocking.

(d)  Cripple walls shall be fully supported by a continuous
foundation.

Table 327.34

WOOD COLUMNS

Wood Nominal Size Cross Section Area Height (feet) Allowable Load (pounds)

8 4,900

4” x 4” 12 1/4” 10 3,100

12 2,150

8 7,700

4” x 6” 19 1/4” 10 4,900

12 3,400

8 30,000

6” x 6” 30 1/4” 10 18,900

12 13,300
Note:  This Table is based on a modulus of elasticity or E of 1,000,000 psi and a fiber bending strength or Fb of 1,000 psi.
History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr., eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Register March 2018 No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

SPS 327.35 Roof design and framing.  (1) ROOF

RAFTERS.  (a)  General.  1.  Rafters shall be notched to fit the exte-
rior wall plate and fastened to the wall.

2.  Collar ties shall be installed on the upper third of every third
pair of abutting roof rafters or every 48 inches, whichever is less.

(b)  Ridge boards.  1.  Where rafters meet to form a ridge, the
rafters shall be attached to a ridge board.

2.  The ridge board shall have a depth at least equal to the
length of the cut end of the rafter abutting it.

3.  Where all rafters are placed directly opposite each other or
are offset at the ridge board by less than the thickness of the rafter,
the ridge board shall have a nominal thickness of at least 1 inch.

4.  Where one or more rafters are offset at the ridge board by
more than the thickness of the rafter, the ridge board shall have a
nominal thickness of at least 2 inches.

(c)  Ridge beams.  Rafters shall be attached to ridge beams
using engineered clips, straps, or hangers or the connection shall
be designed through structural analysis.

(d)  Bearing.  The required bearing for wood rafters shall be in
accordance with the NDS adopted in Table 327.19−2, except in no
case shall the bearing be less than 1 1/2 inches on wood or metal
or less than 3 inches on masonry or concrete.

(e)  Ladders.  1.  In this paragraph, “ladder” means a perpendic-
ular projection extending beyond the face of the wall below.

2.  Overhangs at gable end walls of more than 12 inches shall
be provided with ladders which extend into the structure a dis-
tance no less than the length of the overhang.

3.  The ladders shall be fastened at the wall.

4.  The interior end of each ladder shall be attached to a rafter
or truss with a hanger.

(2) CEILING JOISTS.  (a)  Ceiling joists shall be nailed to exterior
walls and to the ends of rafters.

(b)  Ends of ceiling joists shall be lapped at least 3 inches and
be fastened either with 3−16d nails or in accordance with the floor
joist requirements under s. SPS 327.31 (4) (a) 1. c.

(c)  Where ceiling joists are placed at right angles to the rafters,
the lookout joist or ties shall be fastened to the parallel ceiling
joists or rafters using engineered clips, straps or hangers or the
connection shall be designed through structural analysis.

(3) VALLEY AND HIP RAFTERS.  (a)  Valley rafters.  1.  Where no
bearing is provided under valley rafters at the intersection of 2 roof
areas, the valley rafters shall be doubled in thickness and shall be
at least 2 inches deeper than the required common rafter to permit
full bearing at the beveled end.

2.  Where ridges are provided at different elevations, vertical
support shall be provided for the interior end of the lower ridge
board or ridge beam.

(b)  Hip rafters.  Where no bearing is provided under hip
rafters, the hip rafters shall be of the same thickness as common
rafters and shall be at least 2 inches deeper than required to permit
full contact with the jack rafter.

(4) ROOF TRUSSES.  (a)  Metal plate connected wood roof
trusses shall be designed in accordance with TPI 1 and the NDS
adopted under s. SPS 327.19.

(b)  Truss members shall not be cut, bored or notched, except
as allowed under sub. (5) (d).

(c)  If connection is provided to stabilize a non−load bearing
wall, a slotted expansion joint or clip shall be used.

(5) NOTCHING AND BORING.  (a)  General.  1.  Notching and bor-
ing of beams or girders is prohibited unless determined through
structural analysis.

2.  Notching and boring of ceiling joists and rafters shall com-
ply with pars. (b) and (c).

(b)  Notching.  1.  Notches located in the top or bottom of ceil-
ing joists and rafters are prohibited from all of the following:

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/35.93
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/35.93
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.34(6)(c)1.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.31(4)(a)1.c.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.19
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.35(5)(d)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.35(5)(b)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.35(5)(c)


10−17  SPS 327.38SAFETY AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Published under s. 35.93, Wis. Stats., by the Legislative Reference Bureau.

Published under s. 35.93, Stats. Updated on the first day of each month.  Entire code is always current.  The Register date on each page

is the date the chapter was last  published. Register May 2018 No. 749

a.  Having a depth exceeding 1/6 the depth of the member.

b.  Having a length exceeding 1/3 the depth of the member.

c.  Being located in the middle 1/3 of the span of the member.

2.  Where ceiling joists or rafters are notched at the ends, the
notch may not exceed 1/4 the depth of the member.

3.  Bird mouth cuts may not exceed 1/3 the depth of the rafter
unless the seat cut bears fully on the wall plate.

(c)  Boring.  1.  Holes bored within 2 inches of the top or bottom
of ceiling joists or rafters may not be located in the middle 1/3 of
the span of the member.

2.  The diameter of a hole may not exceed 1/3 the depth of the
member.

3.  A hole may not be bored within 2 inches of a notch or
another hole.

4.  The distance between adjacent holes may not be less than
the diameter of the larger hole.

(d)  Engineered wood products.  Notching or boring of engi-
neered wood products shall be done in accordance with the manu-
facturer’s instructions provided those instructions were devel-
oped through structural analysis or product testing.

(6) ROOF SHEATHING, BOARDS AND PLANKING.  (a)  Structural
sheathing.  The allowable loads and spans for structural sheathing
shall be in accordance with the grade stamp on the panel.

(b)  Roof boards.  1.  Where the rafter spacing is 24 inches on
center or less, roof boards may be used that have a minimum thick-
ness of 5/8−inch for solid sheathing and 3/4−inch for spaced
sheathing.

2.  Where the rafter spacing is greater than 24 inches on center,
roof boards shall be tongue and groove, at least 1 1/2 inches thick.

(c)  Roof planks.  1.  Roof planks shall be tongue and groove
or splined and at least 2 inches, nominal, in thickness.

2.  Planks shall terminate over beams unless the joints are end
matched.

3.  The planks shall be laid so that no continuous line of joints
will occur except at points of support.

4.  Planks shall be nailed or fastened to each beam.
History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr., eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Register March 2018

No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

SPS 327.36 Weather protection for roofs.  (1) GEN-
ERAL.  (a)  All roofs shall be designed and constructed to assure
drainage of water.

(b)  All fasteners shall be corrosion resistant.

(2) UNDERLAYMENT FOR SHINGLES.  Underlayment consisting
of number 15 asphalt−impregnated felt paper or equivalent or
other type I material that shows no water transmission when tested
in accordance with ASTM D 226 or ASTM D 4869 shall be pro-
vided under shingles. Underlayment materials meeting the
requirements of ASTM D 1970 meet the performance require-
ments of this subsection.

(3) ASPHALT SHINGLES.  (a)  General.  1.  Shingles that have a
self−sealing adhesive strip shall include a sealant which has an
average bond strength of at least 1 1/2 pounds per 3 3/4 inches of
shingle width, at 32 degrees Fahrenheit.  The department will
accept results of testing conducted in accordance with an
approved test method for verifying compliance with the sealant
uplift resistance required in this paragraph.  Information on the
applicable test method may be obtained from the department.

2.  Each shingle package shall be labeled by the manufacturer
to indicate conformance to the applicable ASTM standard for
each type of shingle or the exception in par. (b).

3.  Shingles shall be installed in accordance with the manufac-
turer’s recommendations.

4.  Shingles shall have at least 4 fasteners per strip shingle or
2 fasteners per interlocking shingle, unless the manufacturer has
other specifications.

5.  Shingle head lap shall be at least 2 inches, unless the manu-
facturer has other specifications.

6.  All fasteners for shingles shall be corrosion−resistant.
Note:  See s. SPS 327.08 (54) for definitions of shingle terms.
Note:  Section SPS 327.04 (2) requires compliance with all parts of this code,

including these roofing provisions, for an alteration to any camping unit that is regu-
lated under this code.

(b)  Fiberglass shingles.  Fiberglass asphalt shingles shall con-
form to ASTM D 3462 except that laminated shingles shall have
a tear strength of at least 1450 grams in each ply.

(4) OTHER ROOF COVERINGS.  All roof coverings not otherwise
addressed in this section shall be installed in accordance with the
manufacturer’s instructions or a national standard recognized by
the department.

(5) REROOFING.  New roof coverings may not be installed over
existing roof coverings where any of the following conditions
exist:

(a)  The existing roof or roof covering is water−soaked or has
deteriorated such that it is inadequate as a base for additional roof-
ing.

(b)  The existing roof is wood shake, slate, clay, cement, or
asbestos−cement tile.

(c)  The existing roof has 2 or more applications of any type of
permanent roof covering.

(6) FLASHING.  (a)  General.  Flashing shall be installed at the
junction of chimneys and roofs, in all valleys, and around all roof
openings.

(b)  Flashing of open valleys.  1.  Open valleys shall be flashed
with at least No. 28 gauge corrosion−resistant sheet metal, 16
inches wide, or a layer of at least 50−pound roll roofing, 16 inches
wide, placed over a layer of number 15 roofing underlayment.

2.  Flashing sections shall be overlapped by at least 4 inches.

(c)  Flashing of closed valleys.  Where shingles are laced or
woven over the valley, the valley shall be flashed with one of the
following:

1.  At least one layer of 50−pound roofing, at least 20 inches
wide, over a layer of number 15 roofing underlayment.

2.  A product labeled as meeting the requirements of ASTM
D1970.

(d)  Chimney flashing.  1.  Chimneys shall be flashed and
counter−flashed to a height of at least 6 inches.

2.  Chimney crickets or saddles shall be installed where the
upper side of a chimney is more than 30 inches wide on a sloping
roof.

3.  The intersection of the cricket and the chimney shall be
flashed and counter−flashed to a height of at least 6 inches.

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr., eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Register March 2018
No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

Subchapter III — Heating, Ventilating, and Air
Conditioning

SPS 327.37 Scope.  The provisions of this subchapter
shall apply to the design, installation, and construction of all heat-
ing, ventilating, and air conditioning systems in camping units
covered by this code.

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr., eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Register March 2018
No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

SPS 327.38 Design.  Where a heating system is provided
in a camping unit, the heating system shall be designed in accord-
ance with this section.  Where a cooling system is provided in a
camping unit, the cooling requirements of this section shall be
met.

(1) DISTRIBUTION SYSTEMS.  Distribution systems shall be
sized and located to satisfy the heating and cooling loads of each
conditioned space.

(2) VENTILATION.  (a)  General.  1.  All exhaust vents shall ter-
minate outside the camping unit.

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/35.93
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/35.93
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.36(3)(b)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.08(54)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.04(2)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc


10−18 SPS 327.38 WISCONSIN ADMINISTRATIVE CODE

Published under s. 35.93, Wis. Stats., by the Legislative Reference Bureau.

Published under s. 35.93, Stats. Updated on the first day of each month.  Entire code is always current.  The Register date on each page

is the date the chapter was last  published.Register May 2018 No. 749

2.  Automatic or gravity dampers that close when the system
is not operating shall be provided for outdoor air intake and
exhaust.

(b)  Balancing.  1.  ‘General.’  Except as provided under subd.
2., mechanical ventilation systems shall be balanced.

2.  ‘Exception.’  Passive intake air ducts providing makeup air
for intermittent exhaust fans shall be sized to provide at least 40%
of the total air that would be exhausted with all intermittent
exhaust ventilation in the camping unit operating simultaneously.

3.  ‘Kitchen range hoods.’  a.  Kitchen range hoods that
exhaust air from the kitchen area are considered as exhaust venti-
lation for balancing and makeup purposes.

b.  Kitchen range hoods that are listed and installed to recircu-
late air without exhausting it are not required to be balanced.

4.  ‘Infiltration.’  a.  Infiltration may be considered as makeup
air for balancing purposes only where there are no naturally
vented space− or water−heating appliances in the camping unit.

b.  For the purpose of complying with this subdivision, natu-
rally vented space−heating or water−heating appliances are those
that take combustion or dilution air from inside the camping unit,
including unsealed fireplaces and draft hood appliances with
power venting.

Note:  Whole−house fans that are used in the summer to bring cool night air in
through open windows and exhaust into the attic are considered to be a supplemental
cooling system rather than part of the ventilation system.

(c)  Rooms with toilets, tubs, or showers.  Any room with a toi-
let, tub, or shower shall be provided with exhaust ventilation capa-
ble of exhausting 50 cubic feet per minute on an intermittent basis
or 20 cubic feet on a continuous basis.

(3) CONTROLS.  The temperature rise through the equipment
shall not exceed 100 degrees Fahrenheit unless listed.  Controls
shall be provided to maintain the inside temperature.  Where
forced, warm−air systems are used, controls shall be installed to
control air movement.

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr., eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Register March 2018
No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

SPS 327.39  Selection of equipment.  All heating and
central cooling equipment shall be selected on the basis of air−
handling capacity, pumping capacity, and thermal capacity to han-
dle the calculated design heating or cooling load.

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr., eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Register March 2018
No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

SPS 327.40 Types and location of equipment.
(1) GENERAL.  (a)  All heat producing appliances and cooling
appliances shall be listed by a testing agency acceptable to the
department.

(b)  Installation and maintenance of gas−fueled appliances
shall comply with the appliance listing and the requirements of
NFPA 54, National Fuel Gas Code, except as otherwise required
under this subchapter.

(2) FURNACES.  (a)  The input and output capacity of furnaces
shall be listed on the nameplate. All nameplates shall show evi-
dence that the equipment has been listed by a recognized testing
laboratory.

(b)  Furnaces shall be fired with the fuel for which they have
been approved. Fuels shall be supplied to the furnace in the vol-
ume and at the pressure required on the label.

(3) WATER HEATERS.  (a)  A water heater with a tank may be
installed in a closet located in a bathroom or bedroom where the
closet is used exclusively for the water heater, where the enclosed
space has a weather−stripped solid door with a self−closing
device, and where all air for combustion is obtained from the out-
doors.

Note:  Section SPS 327.41 still requires combustion air to be provided to the appli-
ance.

(b)  A tankless water heater may be installed in any closet or
cabinet. The tankless water heater shall be installed in accordance
with the manufacturer’s installation instructions.

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr., eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Register March 2018
No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

SPS 327.41 Combustion air.  (1) SCOPE.  (a)  Naturally
vented appliances and other appliances that require air for com-
bustion and dilution of flue gases to be taken from within the
camping unit shall comply with this section.

(b)  Appliances that are provided with a direct supply of outside
air for combustion in accordance with the manufacturer’s installa-
tion instructions and listing are not required to comply with this
section.

(c)  Where the appliance listing and manufacturer’s instruc-
tions are more stringent than the provisions of this section, the list-
ing and manufacturer’s instructions apply.

(d)  Listed fireplace stoves are not required to comply with this
section if permitted in the manufacturer’s instructions.

(e)  Listed factory−built fireplaces shall comply with the manu-
facturer’s recommendations.

(2) METHODS FOR PROVIDING AIR.  Air for combustion and dilu-
tion shall be provided in accordance with one of the following:

(a)  Air may be provided from inside the camping unit in
accordance with sub. (3).

(b)  Air may be provided from outside the camping unit in
accordance with sub. (4).

(c)  The appliance may be installed in accordance with its list-
ing and manufacturer’s instructions.

(d)  An engineered system providing an adequate supply of air
for combustion ventilation and dilution of flue gases may be
installed if approved by the department.

(3) AIR FROM INSIDE THE CAMPING UNIT.  (a)  1.  The equipment
shall be located in a space with a volume not less than 50 cubic feet
per 1000 Btu/h of the combined input rating of all fuel−burning
appliances drawing combustion and dilution air from that space.

2.  The space may be made up of more than one room if the
rooms are connected through doorways without doors or con-
nected through sets of openings described in par. (b).

(b)  1.  When needed to connect rooms, two openings shall be
provided, one within one foot of the ceiling of the room and one
within one foot of the floor.

2.  The net free area of openings shall be calculated in accord-
ance with sub. (5).

3.  The net free area of each opening shall be a minimum of
one square inch per 1000 Btu/h of combined input rating of the
fuel burning appliances drawing combustion and dilution air from
the communicating rooms, but shall be not less than 100 square
inches.

(4) AIR FROM OUTSIDE THE CAMPING UNIT.  (a)  When air for
combustion and dilution is provided from outside the camping
unit, as allowed under sub. (2) (b), one of the methods specified
in pars. (b) to (d) shall be used.

(b)  Openings may be provided to connect rooms containing
appliances to the outdoors.

1.  a.  Two openings shall be provided, one within one foot of
the ceiling of the room and one within one foot of the floor.

b.  Openings may connect directly to the outdoors or to the
outdoors through a horizontal or vertical duct.

c.  The net free area of openings shall be calculated in accord-
ance with sub. (5).

2.  The net free area of each direct opening to the outdoors not
using a duct shall be a minimum of one square inch per 4000 Btu/h
of combined input rating of the fuel−burning appliances drawing
combustion and dilution air from the room.

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/35.93
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/35.93
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.38(2)(b)2.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.41
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.41(3)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.41(4)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.41(3)(b)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.41(5)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.41(2)(b)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.41(4)(b)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.41(4)(d)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.41(5)


10−19  SPS 327.44SAFETY AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Published under s. 35.93, Wis. Stats., by the Legislative Reference Bureau.

Published under s. 35.93, Stats. Updated on the first day of each month.  Entire code is always current.  The Register date on each page

is the date the chapter was last  published. Register May 2018 No. 749

3.  a.  The net free area of each opening connected to the out-
doors through a horizontal duct shall be a minimum of one square
inch per 2000 Btu/h of combined input rating of the fuel−burning
appliances drawing combustion and dilution air from the room.

b.  The cross−sectional area of the duct shall be equal to or
greater than the required size of the opening.

4.  a.  The net free area of each opening connected to the out-
doors through a vertical duct shall be a minimum of one square
inch per 4000 Btu/h of combined input rating of the fuel−burning
appliances drawing combustion and dilution air from the room.

b.  The cross−sectional area of the duct shall be equal to or
greater than the required size of the opening.

(c)  1.  Where all appliances drawing air for combustion and
dilution from the room are gas appliances, air may be provided via
a single opening to connect the room to the outdoors in accordance
with this paragraph.

2.  a.  The opening shall be located within one foot of the ceil-
ing of the room.

b.  The opening may connect directly to the outdoors, may
connect to the outdoors through a horizontal duct, or may connect
to the outdoors through a vertical duct.

c.  The net free area of the opening shall be calculated in
accordance with sub. (5).

3.  a.  The net free area of the opening shall be a minimum of
one square inch per 3000 Btu/h of combined input rating of the
fuel−burning appliances drawing combustion and dilution air
from the room, and not less than the combined cross−sectional
flow areas of the appliance flue collars or draft hood outlets.

b.  The cross−sectional area of the duct shall be equal to or
greater than the required size of the opening.

4.  The appliances shall have a minimum clearance to the sur-
faces of the room of one inch at the sides and back of the appliance
and 6 inches at the front of the appliance.

(d)  1.  A combination of openings to the outside and openings
to other rooms may be used in accordance with this paragraph.

2.  a.  One opening shall connect directly to the outdoors, con-
nect to the outdoors through a horizontal duct, or connect to the
outdoors through a vertical duct.

b.  The net free area of the openings shall be calculated in
accordance with sub. (5).

c.  The net free area of the opening shall be a minimum of one
square inch per 5000 Btu/h of combined input rating of the fuel
burning appliances drawing combustion and dilution air from the
room.

d.  The cross−sectional area of a duct, if used, shall be equal
to or greater than the required size of the opening.

3.  a.  The equipment shall be located in a space with a volume
not less than 50 cubic feet per 1000 Btu/h of the combined input
rating of all fuel−burning appliances installed in that space.

b.  The space may be made up of more than one room if the
rooms are connected through openings without doors or con-
nected through sets of openings described in subd. 4.

4.  a.  When needed to connect rooms, two openings shall be
provided, one within one foot of the ceiling of the room and one
within one foot of the floor.

b.  The net free area of openings shall be calculated in accord-
ance with sub. (5).

c.  The net free area of each opening shall be a minimum of
one square inch per 1000 Btu/h of combined input rating of the
fuel burning appliances drawing combustion and dilution air from
the communicating rooms, but shall be not less than 100 square
inches.

(5) NET FREE AREA CALCULATION.  (a)  The required size of
openings for combustion and dilution air shall be based on the net
free area of each opening.

(b)  The net free area of an opening shall be that specified by
the manufacturer of the opening covering or by a source approved
by the department.

(c)  In the absence of such information, openings covered with
metal louvers shall be deemed to have a net free area of 75 percent
of the area of the opening, and openings covered with wood lou-
vers shall be deemed to have a net free area of 25 percent of the
area of the opening.

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr., eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Register March 2018
No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

SPS 327.42 Mechanical draft systems.  Where a
mechanical draft system, such as a fan is used, provision shall be
made to prevent the flow of gas to the main burners when the draft
system is not performing so as to satisfy the operating require-
ments of the system for safe performance.

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr., eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Register March 2018
No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

SPS 327.43 Equipment maintenance information.
Required regular maintenance actions for equipment shall be
clearly stated and incorporated on a readily accessible label.  The
label may be limited to identifying, by title or publication number,
the operation and maintenance manual for that particular model
and type of equipment.  Maintenance instructions shall be fur-
nished for equipment which requires preventive maintenance for
efficient operation.  Manufacturer’s manuals for all installed heat-
ing and cooling equipment and service water heating equipment
shall be provided.

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr., eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Register March 2018
No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

SPS 327.44 Ductwork.  (1) DUCT USE.  Ducts designed
for the transmission of air shall be used for no other purpose.

(2) INTERIOR DUCTS.  All interior ducts shall be constructed in
accordance with the following:

(a)  Supply and return air ducts.  Supply and return air ducts
shall comply with this paragraph except that ducts attached to
appliances may be constructed of materials specified in the appli-
ance listing.

1.  Kitchen exhaust ducts and ducts for air exceeding 250
degrees Fahrenheit shall be constructed of sheet metal or lined
with sheet metal or constructed of other noncombustible noncor-
rugated materials.

2.  Ducts connected to furnaces shall be constructed of sheet
metal for at least 6 feet from the furnace.

3.  Spaces formed by unlined wood joists, studs or wood
I−joists with solid webs may be used as return air ducts.  Spaces
used as return air ducts shall be cut off from all remaining unused
portions of the space by tight−fitting stops of sheet metal or of
wood joist material.  Bridging shall be removed from the joist
space.

(b)  Under−floor plenums.  An under−floor space may be used
as a plenum in a camping unit in accordance with this section.

1.  Except for the floor immediately above the under−floor
plenum, supply ducts shall be provided extending from the
plenum to registers or other floor levels.

2.  The under−floor spaces shall not be used for storage, shall
be cleaned of all loose scrap material and shall be tightly and sub-
stantially enclosed.

3.  The enclosing material of the under−floor space, including
the side wall insulation and vapor barriers, shall not be more
flammable than one−inch wood boards.

4.  Access shall be through an opening in the floor which shall
be 18 inches by 24 inches.

5.  The furnace supplying warm air to the under−floor space
shall be equipped with an automatic control which will start the
air circulating fan when the air in the furnace bonnet reaches a

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/35.93
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/35.93
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.41(5)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.41(5)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.41(4)(d)4.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.41(5)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc


10−20 SPS 327.44 WISCONSIN ADMINISTRATIVE CODE

Published under s. 35.93, Wis. Stats., by the Legislative Reference Bureau.

Published under s. 35.93, Stats. Updated on the first day of each month.  Entire code is always current.  The Register date on each page

is the date the chapter was last  published.Register May 2018 No. 749

temperature not higher than 150 degrees Fahrenheit.  The control
shall be one that cannot be set higher than 150 degrees Fahrenheit.

6.  The furnace supplying warm air to the under−floor space
shall be equipped with an approved temperature limit control that
will limit outlet air temperature to 200 degrees Fahrenheit.

7.  A noncombustible receptacle shall be placed below each
floor opening into the air chamber.  The receptacle shall be
securely suspended from the floor members and shall be not more
than 18 inches below the floor opening.  The area of the receptacle
shall extend 3 inches beyond the opening on all sides.  The perime-
ter of the receptacle shall have a vertical lip at least one inch high
at the open sides if it is at the level of the bottom of the joist, or 3
inches high if the receptacle is suspended.

8.  Floor registers shall be designed for easy removal to permit
access for cleaning the receptacles.

9.  Exterior walls and interior stud partitions shall be fire-
stopped at the floor.

10.  Each wall register shall be connected to the air chamber
by a register box or boot.

11.  A duct conforming to par. (a) shall extend from the fur-
nace supply outlet at least 6 inches below combustible framing.

12.  The entire ground surface and enclosing exterior walls of
the under−floor space shall be covered with a vapor barrier having
a vapor permeability rating of one perm or less and a flame spread
rating of 200 or less.

13.  Fuel gas lines may not be located within the under−floor
space.

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr., eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Register March 2018
No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

SPS 327.45 Dampers, registers, and grilles.
(1) VOLUME AND BACKDRAFT DAMPERS.  (a)  Volume duct dampers
shall be provided to permit balancing of the system.

(b)  Volume dampers shall be provided with access.
Note:  Acceptable means of access include a manufactured access panel, an air

grille used as a cover, a plastic ceiling cap, or a damper accessible through an air dif-
fuser or grille.

(2) AIR REGISTERS AND GRILLES.  (a)  Supply air registers.  All
supply air outlets shall be provided with registers or devices which
will provide a uniform distribution of air.

(b)  Return air grilles.  Return air grilles shall not be located in
bathrooms, kitchens, utility spaces, or a confined space in which
a draft diverter or draft regulator is located.  All other habitable
spaces shall have permanent openings to a return air grille equal
in area to the supply outlet serving those areas.  At least one return
air opening shall be provided for each floor.

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr., eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Register March 2018
No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

SPS 327.46 Piping.  (1) PIPE SIZES AND ARRANGEMENT.

All steam and hot water supply and return piping, air−line piping
and auxiliary equipment shall be of appropriate sizes, elevations
and arrangements to accomplish the calculated results without
stress or other detriment.

Note:  The sizes of pipe to be used for mains and risers may be selected from the
ASHRAE Guide and Data Book, published by the American Society of Heating,
Refrigerating and Air Conditioning Engineers; or the manuals published by the Insti-
tute of Boiler and Radiator Manufacturers or the Mechanical Contractors Association
of America.

(2) EXPANSION AND CONTRACTION.  The piping for the heating
system shall be equipped with anchors, expansion swings, or
joints, supports and similar devices to relieve stress and strain
caused by temperature change of the pipe material.

(3) PIPE INSULATION.  Unguarded steam, hot water supply and
return piping shall be covered with insulating material where the
pipes pass through occupied areas and the surface temperature
exceeds 180 degrees Fahrenheit.

(4) STEAM AND HOT WATER PIPES.  No pipe carrying hot water
or steam at a surface temperature exceeding 250 degrees Fahren-
heit shall be placed within one inch of any combustible material,

pass through a combustible floor, ceiling, or partition unless the
pipe is protected by a metal sleeve one inch larger in diameter than
the pipe or with approved pipe covering.

(5) BALANCING.  Balancing cocks shall be provided in each
circuit of a hot water distribution system.

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr., eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Register March 2018
No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

SPS 327.47 Venting system location.  A venting sys-
tem shall terminate at least 3 feet above any forced air inlet located
within 10 feet horizontally.  This provision does not apply to the
combustion air intake of a direct−vent appliance.

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr., eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Register March 2018
No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

SPS 327.48 Multiple appliance venting.  Two or more
listed gas−or liquid−fueled appliances may be connected to a
common gravity−type flue provided the appliances are equipped
with listed primary safety controls and listed shutoff devices and
comply with the following requirements:

(1) The appliances shall be located in the same story, except
for engineered venting systems.

(2) The appliances shall be joined at a manifold or Y−type fit-
ting as close to the chimney as possible, unless the connector from
each appliance enters a separate chimney inlet and the inlets are
offset at least 12 inches vertically or the separate inlets occur at
right angles to each other.

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr., eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Register March 2018
No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

SPS 327.49 Fuel storage.  (1) LP GAS STORAGE TANKS.

(a)  All LP gas storage tanks shall be constructed, installed, and
maintained to conform with the applicable sections of ch. SPS
340.

(b)  LP gas tanks may not be located inside camping units.

(c)  LP gas tanks shall have welded steel supports and be per-
manently installed on concrete pads or foundations.

(2) OIL STORAGE TANKS.  (a)  The total oil storage capacity
inside any camping unit shall be limited to 550 gallons in one tank,
or not more than 275 gallons in each of 2 tanks cross−connected
to a single burner.

(b)  Oil storage tanks on the inside of any camping unit shall
be located at the same level as the burner it serves.

Note:  Except as provided in pars. (a) and (b), the installation of oil storage tanks
is regulated under ch. ATCP 93, Flammable, Combustible, and Hazardous Liquids.

(3) GAS PIPING SYSTEMS.  Gas piping systems, extending from
the point of delivery to the connection with each gas−fired appli-
ance or device, shall be installed to conform with NFPA 54,
National Fuel Gas Code.

(4) SHUTOFF AND CONTROL DEVICES.  (a)  Any oil−fired appli-
ance or device connected to a fuel piping system shall have an
accessible, approved manual shutoff valve installed upstream of
any connector.

(b)  Automatic gas−burning heating appliances shall be
equipped with listed devices which will shut off the gas to the pilot
light and main burner or burners in the event of pilot failure.

(c)  Liquid fuel−burning appliances shall be equipped with pri-
mary safety controls which will shut off the flow of fuel to the
burner or burners in the event of ignition failure.

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr., eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Register March 2018
No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

Subchapter IV — Electrical Standards

SPS 327.50 Electrical standards.  (1) All electrical
wiring, installations, equipment and materials used in the con-
struction of camping units shall comply with the requirements of
the Wisconsin Administrative Electrical Code, Vol. 2., ch. SPS
316, except as provided in this section.

(2) The requirements in NEC section 210.70 (A) (2) (b) do not
apply to a stairway for a deck.  A light over the stairs of the deck

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/35.93
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/35.93
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.44(2)(a)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/ch.%20SPS%20340
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/ch.%20SPS%20340
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/ch.%20ATCP%2093
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/ch.%20SPS%20316
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/ch.%20SPS%20316


10−21  SPS 327.57SAFETY AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Published under s. 35.93, Wis. Stats., by the Legislative Reference Bureau.

Published under s. 35.93, Stats. Updated on the first day of each month.  Entire code is always current.  The Register date on each page

is the date the chapter was last  published. Register May 2018 No. 749

is not required, but a light outside the door exiting to the deck is
required.

(3) Except as provided in s. SPS 327.11, the inspection of the
electrical construction of a camping unit is not required.

(4) No more than one receptacle outlet is required to be
installed for the entire countertop space of a kitchen in a camping
unit.

(5) The requirements for installation of fire alarms and smoke
detectors in a camping unit are as provided in s. SPS 327.26.

(6) The rating of the disconnecting means and the ampacity of
a conductor providing supply to a camping unit consisting of a
framed structure may not be less than 50 amperes.

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr. as SPS 327.51, eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Reg-
ister March 2018 No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

Subchapter V — Plumbing

SPS 327.51 Plumbing.  (1) GENERAL.  The design, con-
struction, and installation of plumbing shall comply with the
requirements of the Wisconsin Plumbing Code, chs. SPS 382 to
387, except as provided in this section.

(2) TANKLESS WATER HEATERS.  (a)  The minimum flow rate of
a tankless type water heater may be obtained by multiplying 0.65
by the calculated hot water gallons per minute demand, as deter-
mined by ch. SPS 382 Tables 382.40–1b and 382.40–3, provided
the heater will achieve a water temperature of 110 degrees Fahren-
heit at the terminal fitting or faucet.

(b)  The sizing method in par. (a) may not be used for sizing a
water heater serving a high−flow fixture, a hose bibb, a hydrant,
or a fixture that is required to have a supply line with a diameter
larger than one−half inch.

(c)  For the purposes of this subsection, “high−flow fixture”
means a fixture with a flow rate of more than 4 gallons per minute,
at 80 pounds per square inch, and a water velocity not exceeding
8 feet per second.

(3) SINKS.  (a)  No more than one sink is required to be installed
in a camping unit.

(b)  If only one sink is installed in a camping unit, the sink shall
be installed in the kitchen of the camping unit.

(4) INSPECTIONS.  Except as provided in s. SPS 327.11, the
inspection of the plumbing of a camping unit is not required.

(5) PIPE AND TUBING.  The pipe and tubing for any portion of
the plumbing system of a camping unit may be flexible plastic.

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr. as SPS 327.52, eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Reg-
ister March 2018 No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

Subchapter VI — Camping Unit Transfer Tanks

SPS 327.52 Purpose.  The purpose of this subchapter is
to establish uniform standards and criteria for the installation,
inspection, and servicing of camping unit transfer tanks so that the
tanks are safe and will protect public health and the waters of the
state.

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr. as SPS 327.53, eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Reg-
ister March 2018 No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

SPS 327.53 Installation and maintenance.  A camping
unit transfer tank shall be installed and maintained in accordance
with the manufacturer’s specifications and as provided under ch.
ATCP 79.

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr. as SPS 327.54, eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Reg-
ister March 2018 No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

SPS 327.54 Compliance with code.  A camping unit
transfer tank that meets the following requirements is in compli-
ance with this code:

(1) The tank is listed and has been labeled by a nationally rec-
ognized testing agency.

(2) The tank is installed as required under s. SPS 327.53

(3) Inlet and toilet connections to the tank are sized to provide
adequate flow rate and designed to prevent backflow contamina-
tion.

(4) A vent that terminates outside the camping unit is located
at the highest point of the tank.

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr. as SPS 327.55, eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Reg-
ister March 2018 No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

SPS 327.55 Servicing requirements.  The servicing of
a camping unit transfer tank shall be performed in a manner to pre-
vent the discharge of wastewater into the surrounding soil or onto
the ground surface.

Note:  The servicing of private sewerage systems including septic and holding
tanks, dosing chambers, grease interceptors, seepage beds, seepage pits, seepage
trenches, privies and portable restrooms is addressed in ch. NR 113, which is adminis-
tered by the department of natural resources.

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr. as SPS 327.56, eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Reg-
ister March 2018 No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

SPS 327.56 Abandonment.  A subsurface tank that is no
longer used as a camping unit transfer tank shall be abandoned by
complying with all of the following:

(1) Disconnecting all piping to the tank.

(2) Sealing all disconnected piping to the tank.

(3) Pumping and disposing of the contents from the tank.
Note:  The removal and disposal of the contents from treatment tanks, distribution

tanks, seepage pits, and holding components is addressed in ch. NR 113, which is
administered by the department of natural resources.

(4) Removing the tank or removing the cover of the tank and
filling the tank with soil, gravel, or an inert solid material.

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr. as SPS 327.57, eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Reg-
ister March 2018 No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

SPS 327.57 Penalties.  Penalties for violations of this
subchapter shall be assessed in accordance with s. 145.12, Stats.

Note:  Section 145.12 (4), Stats., indicates that any person who violates any order
under s. 145.02 (3) (f) or 145.20 (2) (f) or any rule or standard adopted under s. 145.02
shall forfeit not less than $10 nor more than $1,000 for each violation. Each violation
of an order under s. 145.02 (3) (f) or 145.20 (2) (f) or any rule or standard adopted
under s. 145.02 constitutes a separate offense and each day of continued violation is
a separate offense.

History:  EmR1703: emerg. cr. as SPS 327.58, eff. 2−6−17; CR 17−017: cr. Reg-
ister March 2018 No. 747, eff. 4−1−18.

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/35.93
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/35.93
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.11
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.26
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/ch.%20SPS%20382
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/ch.%20SPS%20387
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/ch.%20SPS%20382
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.51(2)(a)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.11
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/ch.%20ATCP%2079
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20327.53
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/ch.%20NR%20113
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/ch.%20NR%20113
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/145.12
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/145.12(4)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/145.02(3)(f)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/145.20(2)(f)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/145.02
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/145.02(3)(f)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/145.20(2)(f)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/145.02
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/emergencyrules/EmR1703
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cr/2017/17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/register/747/B/toc

	Fredonia Government Center - Board Room
	3A 04-06-2023 VB Minutes DRAFT.pdf
	Fredonia Government Center - Board Room


